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          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: My name is Eva

          3  Moskowitz. I'm the Chair of the Education Committee,

          4  and we're going to bring this Committee to order.

          5                 I have been joined by Council Member

          6  Oddo, Council Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx.

          7                 And thank you, Council Member

          8  Koppell, for being here. I know others will be

          9  joining us shortly. We have a number of simultaneous

         10  meetings going on at this time, so members will be

         11  coming in and out.

         12                 I should say at the outset that we

         13  have available Spanish interpretation, courtesy of

         14  the Immigration Coalition, and we're grateful for

         15  their assistance. I'd like to ask the interpreters

         16  to please stand up and make a brief announcement, if

         17  they're here? Oh, they're not here yet. Okay. Oh,

         18  great. Thank you. If you could speak into the mic

         19  over here, that would be great.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Madam Chair,

         21  I'm going to be here for a little while, but I have

         22  two other hearings, so I'm not going to be able to

         23  stay too long. I'll try and come back.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 (Interpreter announcement in

          3  Spanish.)

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

          5  Today's hearing concerns the ability of non-native

          6  speakers of English, or people who don't speak

          7  English well or at all to understand first and

          8  foremost their children's education and all of the

          9  policy changes that are going on and the day-to-day

         10  workings of schools that, of course, parents and

         11  guardians need to be involved in.

         12                 While this Committee has held

         13  hearings on the instruction related to English

         14  language learners, we have not held a hearing

         15  specifically on translation and that is what we are

         16  here to do today.

         17                 This is an oversight hearing on the

         18  issue of translation, how it's done, how well it's

         19  done, the way it's done, how much it cost, how much

         20  it used to cost, as well as a hearing on Intro. 464,

         21  which is one possible solution to what are clearly

         22  barriers that parents and others face in trying to

         23  advocate for their children and participate in

         24  school affairs.

         25                 Just by way of background, I'm sure
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          2  the audience knows that more than a third of New

          3  Yorkers are foreign born, and we estimate that about

          4  half of City school children live in households

          5  where English is not the primary language.

          6                 Given the complex federal state and

          7  local regulations around schools, given the more

          8  than, the volumes of regulations governing schools,

          9  given the amount of paperwork it requires just to

         10  interact with the school system, as well as all of

         11  the face-to-face interactions, I as Chair of the

         12  Education Committee and I know my colleagues are

         13  deeply concerned that we are disenfranchising,

         14  disempowering, literally hundreds of thousands

         15  potential allies in the school system, and our

         16  efforts to educate the 1.1 million children.

         17                 The Committee has heard many, many

         18  times that parents have choices to make that they

         19  find difficult to avail themselves of because of the

         20  language barriers.

         21                 Today's hearing will attempt to

         22  address these issues of the barriers as well as

         23  Intro. 464. I should mention, although Council

         24  Member Monserrate and Yassky are not here yet, that

         25  they are the authors of Intro. 464.
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          2                 We got the answers to our information

          3  requests on Friday and they are at the table here

          4  for public consumption, as some people know by now

          5  the Committee asked a set of questions in advance of

          6  the Department of Education. We expect answers in

          7  writing, which we make available to the public so

          8  that everybody can participate in that discussion as

          9  much as possible.

         10                 We did not, however, get any

         11  commentary on Intro. 464, which is a little

         12  disappointing because we do like to get it in

         13  writing. It allows us to be more prepared when we

         14  ask you questions about the Department's position on

         15  the bill, but we didn't get that so we look forward

         16  at a minimum to orally understanding the

         17  Department's position on that bill.

         18                 We are joined this morning by Mr.

         19  Andres Alonso, the Chief of Staff to Carmen Farina.

         20  Mr. Kleber Palma, who is the Director of the new,

         21  relatively new Translation and Interpretation Unit,

         22  and Maria Santos, who, I don't know your exact title

         23  but I believe you were in charge of English language

         24  learning as well as foreign language instruction and

         25  probably have a host of other responsibilities.
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          2                 I know you've testified before this

          3  Committee in the past, and we appreciate your

          4  attendance.

          5                 We have also been joined by Council

          6  Member Helen Sears from Queens. Thank you for being

          7  here.

          8                 So, I think Mr. Alonso is going to be

          9  testifying on behalf of the Department. Let me

         10  remind you that the microphone, the light has to be

         11  off for the microphone to be on, and when your

         12  colleagues join you to add commentary, please

         13  remember to state your name because these hearings

         14  are transcribed.

         15                 Thank you very much, and welcome.

         16                 MR. ALONSO: Thank you. Good morning,

         17  Chair Moskowitz and members of the Education

         18  Committee and guests, and I'd like to especially

         19  welcome the students from Russell Sage Junior High

         20  in Queens. I hope this is an educational experience

         21  for them.

         22                 My name is Andres Alonso, and I am

         23  Chief of Staff to Deputy Chancellor Carmen Farina. I

         24  have with me Kleber Palma, Director of Translation

         25  and Interpretation Unit, and Maria Santos, Senior

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  Instructional Manager for English Language Learners

          3  and Foreign Language, who is the Executive Director

          4  for Parent Engagement, would have been here today

          5  but had a family emergency and could not join us.

          6                 I'm here to tell you about our

          7  efforts to ensure meaningful access to our programs

          8  by persons with limited English proficiency.

          9                 The Department of Education is

         10  committed to providing parents who do not speak

         11  English with critical information about

         12  school-related matters in a language that the parent

         13  can understand.

         14                 This commitment is part of our belief

         15  that parent engagement is essential to student

         16  academic progress. This is why we provided schools

         17  with parent coordinators. This is why we established

         18  a translation and interpretation unit earlier this

         19  year.

         20                 The Department has identified over

         21  $10 million that will be earmarked for translation

         22  and interpretation services to schools in the coming

         23  school year. Some of that will go toward staffing

         24  the unit with 26 school-time professional

         25  translators. Some for professional services to serve
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          2  parents from low-incidence languages. Some will go

          3  toward funding for regions and schools to supplement

          4  the work of the unit in the field.

          5                 The unit will seek to provide

          6  coherence, guidance and training to the work of the

          7  Department in this area. It will partner with

          8  community-based organizations, and it will identify

          9  the needs and resources available at the school

         10  level, in order to meet the critical needs of

         11  parents.

         12                 The Unit will serve administrative

         13  offices and schools. Many critical documents emanate

         14  from schools and the interactions at the school

         15  level involving parents who don't speak English are

         16  too numerous to quantify.

         17                 Because of this, it is important to

         18  emphasize that the unit will help support schools

         19  develop the resources needed to function as

         20  communities that can serve all parents.

         21                 We will ask that schools incorporate

         22  their assessment of their needs and their plans to

         23  meet those needs into their educational plans.

         24                 The unit will provide training

         25  information and key linkages to resources.
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          2                 This level of commitment is new to

          3  the Department. The unit was transferred to the

          4  Office of Teaching and Learning last month in order

          5  to make sure that the work of all officers within

          6  the Department be integrated to meet the needs of

          7  these parents in order to serve the academic needs

          8  of their children.

          9                 We feel that we're in the best

         10  position in the Department to bring about this

         11  integration which will require communication to the

         12  field, notice to parents, continuous assessment

         13  about the effectiveness of our efforts in service

         14  delivery, the replication of best practices and

         15  focus on areas of improvement.

         16                 We have already begun the process of

         17  assessment by serving principals and meeting with

         18  parents and community-based organizations.

         19                 The appointment of Kleber Palma to

         20  the position of Director of the Translation and

         21  Interpretation Unit is a big step for the

         22  Department, because in the past no one person was

         23  accountable for translation, interpretation

         24  services, nor for coordinating and improving our

         25  efforts.
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          2                 Kleber was instrumental in bringing

          3  this integration to the Los Angeles school system,

          4  which is the closest in scale and complexity to our

          5  own in the country. When we researched other

          6  systems, we thought that his work in LA represented

          7  best practices in this area, went out and got him

          8  which is a sign of the extent of the Department's

          9  commitment.

         10                 I'd like to close by making a few

         11  statements about Intro. 464. The Department believes

         12  that the objectives of the proposed Education Equity

         13  Act of 2004 and also the Department's Translation

         14  and Interpretation Unit are aligned, both seek to

         15  help schools, parents whose primary language is

         16  other than English becomes fully engaged in the

         17  children's education and progress by providing them

         18  information and access in the languages they

         19  require.

         20                 I can say as an aside, being 12 years

         21  old when I came into this country and still

         22  interpreting for my parents when I go home on

         23  weekends, I'm very sympathetic to the goals of the

         24  legislation.

         25                 It is my understanding that Intro.
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          2  464 is preempted by State law. As you know, only the

          3  State or the Department pursuant to the State's

          4  Education Law has jurisdictional matters that are

          5  educational, pedagogic.

          6                 One of the stated purposes of Intro

          7  464 is to enable parents to adequately participate

          8  into the education of their children, and thereby to

          9  prevent their children's education from suffering.

         10  The legislation, therefore, is targeted at

         11  educational matters, and as such concerns a subject

         12  not amenable to local legislation.

         13                 The State already regulates in this

         14  area, requiring each, Board of Education or local

         15  educational authority, including the Department, to

         16  among other things distribute translated

         17  school-related information when necessary, and

         18  provide support services when appropriate in the

         19  first language of our people's parents.

         20                 Given the expressed State regulation

         21  on the subject matter, as well as its pedagogical

         22  nature, it is our view that the goal of Intro. 464,

         23  while laudable, cannot be addressed through local

         24  legislation.

         25                 The Department is committed to take
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          2  reasonable steps to provide steps with meaningful

          3  participation and access to our program. The

          4  legislation, however, would impose on the

          5  Department, a substantial and funded mandate given

          6  practical limitations such as the number of

          7  potential interactions, the availability of

          8  resources and the implication of its provisions on

          9  employment status.

         10                 The Department believes in an

         11  approach by which multi-lingual translation and

         12  interpretation are coordinated centrally with an

         13  unprecedented emphasis on both quality and cost

         14  control.

         15                 In this approach resources are

         16  leveraged in regents and schools to meet the high

         17  and low incidence language needs of parents and

         18  support the needs of high-risk students. Schools and

         19  regions must address these needs as part of a

         20  coherent comprehensive educational plan that

         21  responds to the needs of schools and reflects the

         22  nature of school interactions with their

         23  communities.

         24                 I would like to thank the immigrant

         25  coalition, advocates for children, the Hispanic

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  Federation, Learning Leaders and the Asian-Americans

          3  for Equality, among others, whose input helped

          4  shaped our direction. Thank you for the opportunity

          5  to be here today, and we will be happy to take your

          6  questions.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you. We

          9  have been joined by Council Member Robert Jackson

         10  from Manhattan. And of course, Council Member Hiram

         11  Monserrate and Council Member Yassky who have

         12  authored this legislation.

         13                 Just before I give my colleagues, the

         14  author of this legislation, an opportunity to make

         15  some introductory remarks, I just want to ask if Mr.

         16  Alonso can tell us who told you that only the State

         17  has jurisdiction over matters that are educational

         18  or pedagogic?

         19                 MR. ALONSO: That information was

         20  provided by our Legal Department.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So that would

         22  be Michael Best, I take it?

         23                 MR. ALONSO: Michael Best's office.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

         25                 And what section of the law? Did he
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          2  happen to tell you what section of the law prohibits

          3  us from legislating in this area?

          4                 MR. ALONSO: We can provide that

          5  information for you. I don't have it with me right

          6  now.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay. We're

          8  very familiar with Mr. Best's legal interpretation

          9  of the powers of the City Council. I would beg to

         10  differ. Not only did we have authorities in the area

         11  of education before Mayoral control, but Mayoral

         12  control made the Department of Education much more

         13  of a City agency than it ever was, even though, of

         14  course, it is a creature of State law.

         15                 And I would suggest that Joel Klein,

         16  the Chancellor, being the excellent lawyer that he

         17  is, needs to review his legal understanding of the

         18  powers of the City Council because we wouldn't be

         19  here if we didn't have the authority over education.

         20                 Exactly where the limits of that

         21  authority are, that is debatable. But the notion

         22  that we have no jurisdiction, I have to say is

         23  laughable. It's just a laughable statement. And I

         24  don't believe that either Michael Best or Chancellor

         25  Klein, being the good lawyers that they are really
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          2  hold that position.

          3                 I don't want to get too bogged down

          4  in that because obviously we have a lot of questions

          5  about what is and isn't being translated and how

          6  parents are getting access, but before we begin, I

          7  want to make sure that Council Member Monserrate,

          8  who is the prime author of this legislation, and

          9  also Council Member Yassky, have a chance to make

         10  some opening remarks.

         11                 Council Member Monserrate.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair. Let me say first and foremost that we

         14  are extremely grateful to you for ensuring the

         15  prompt hearing on this issue, on Intro. 464.

         16                 Let me say that this is an issue that

         17  has extreme relevance throughout the City of New

         18  York, not just in my district in Corona, in Jackson

         19  Heights, in Elmhurst, but throughout the Borough of

         20  Queens, Upper Manhattan, the Bronx, Brooklyn, where

         21  we see an immigrant population that is exploding

         22  here in the City of New York, and as it relates to

         23  the services and the needs that they have, the City

         24  must respond in the affirmative.

         25                 Let me say that the intention of 464
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          2  is not just merely to infuse a few dollars within

          3  the fiscal year, but to ensure that these services

          4  are codified in a manner that will ensure that these

          5  services are here in 2005 and 2006 and in 2007,

          6  irrespective of what budgetary priorities the

          7  certain administration might or might not have.

          8                 I think it's extremely interesting

          9  that just yesterday there was an announcement by the

         10  Administration for the increase of funding for these

         11  services. An issue that we have been lobbying for

         12  for well over a year, and now another school year

         13  has passed us with services that were lacking, to

         14  say the least.

         15                 And I will say that not only from the

         16  advocates and the organizations that have brought

         17  these issues to my office, but to many of my own

         18  constituents that speak Bengali and Spanish and Urdu

         19  and other languages, all of which have had

         20  increasing difficulty, truly being vested and

         21  incorporated into their children's education, for

         22  lack of not dominating English, not even being able

         23  to read their children's report cards or know what a

         24  letter says, in fact many times relying on their

         25  very children to translate the documents that are
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          2  coming in from school.

          3                 So, I thank you, Madam Chair. And I

          4  whole-heartedly agree with you, the issue that we do

          5  not have the legislative power to ensure this is

          6  laughable. And I look forward to working with you

          7  closely for the passage of this bill.

          8                 I also want to thank my colleague,

          9  David Yassky, who has been a firm supporter, and to

         10  all the advocates and the parents that are here

         11  today to hear government at its best in ensuring

         12  that all our communities are treated equally,

         13  period.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         16                 Council Member Yassky, would you like

         17  to say a few words?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes. Thank

         19  you, Chair Moskowitz. And I want to thank you very

         20  much for holding this hearing, and giving this bill

         21  the first, putting this bill really on the first

         22  step toward enactment. Because I do believe that

         23  this is a critical policy issue that of course we

         24  must address through legislation. I really hope that

         25  we do not get bogged down in a diversion about, you
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          2  know, whether this is a fit subject for legislation.

          3                 The Department is a Mayoral agency.

          4  It is funded in the budget, enacted by the City

          5  Council each year. I have no doubt that it is

          6  absolutely within the purview of the City Council to

          7  set this, to make this sort of policy decision.

          8                 And my hope is that we could engage

          9  on the substance of it. Mr. Alonso, your testimony I

         10  welcome. It says that the goals, if I understand it,

         11  say that the goals of Intro. 464 are aligned with

         12  the Department. You know, I don't know if that means

         13  that you -- I don't want to use loaded words like

         14  support or agree with, but it sounds like at least

         15  there's some general sense of wanting to move in the

         16  same direction as this bill does.

         17                 Your testimony also, though, uses the

         18  phrase "unfunded mandate," which I understand to

         19  mean we cannot afford all of the things we would

         20  like to do.

         21                 Now, I understand that. I live in the

         22  real world, as well as you do. Oftentimes we can't

         23  afford all of the things we would like to do, but we

         24  have to then engage with the very difficult

         25  questions of what can we afford, and what do we have

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  to make sure that we afford. And I guess what I

          3  would hope is that the Department, if you feel that

          4  this bill goes too far, will come forward with a

          5  different version or proposal for changes or

          6  amendments, that would say exactly what you think,

          7  you know, is a necessity and what is not.

          8                 It's certainly my position, or where

          9  I'm coming from that, you know, failing that, I

         10  think this is a good bill. I think we ought to be

         11  able to afford everything in this bill.

         12                 And, so, you know, in the absence of

         13  alternative, I absolutely will continue to press,

         14  and I believe that the many, many thousands of New

         15  Yorkers represented by the small number of people

         16  here, it's a lot for this room and a lot for this

         17  hearing, but compared to the hundreds of thousands

         18  of New York families who are being shut out

         19  partially from their schools by the lack of language

         20  access, you know, this is a small number, I have no

         21  doubt that those families will continue to press us

         22  for this legislation.

         23                 So, I guess I would leave you with

         24  that thought, that I would hope, if you want to

         25  engage on the substance of it, that we do so and
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          2  say, well, here's what we can do and here's what we

          3  can't do. If not, certainly then unless there's a

          4  better alternative on the table, I will continue to

          5  push for this bill. Thank you, Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you. If

          7  one of the interpreters could come up, that would be

          8  helpful.

          9                 INTERPRETER: Apparently there are

         10  some upstairs as well that need headsets, okay?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I think we

         12  still have a few hands up. And we see you in the

         13  balcony, so I think someone is coming. I still see

         14  people in the balcony with hands up. Oh, you're

         15  getting? Great.

         16                 Council Member Helen Sears I think

         17  has a brief comment.

         18                 And I know you have to go to some

         19  other meetings.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         21  much, Madam Chair.

         22                 I want to thank you for allowing me

         23  to sit in on this. I am not a member of it but your

         24  issues are so key, and I want to thank my colleague,

         25  Councilman Monserrate, for putting this bill
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          2  forward, and Councilman Yassky.

          3                 First, I have to commend you for

          4  providing these ear phones for the translations to

          5  take place.

          6                 I think if there was any proof or

          7  need to demonstrate how international a City New

          8  York is, I think this hearing is doing that.

          9                 What it also does is to show the

         10  incredible need and understanding that parents who

         11  have children in a school system in the City of New

         12  York care about their kids, and they care about the

         13  education that they're getting. And as a result, the

         14  international city that we are, and I say this to

         15  the Administration, is that we have a major

         16  responsibility to educate those children.

         17                 I know I lived in a foreign country

         18  and I did not speak the language. But every part of

         19  my living there was important to me. It was

         20  important to understand papers that I had to read,

         21  it understood immigration and what it meant when

         22  they visited me. I didn't have the assistance that

         23  here in the City of New York we are obligated to do.

         24  I know in my district the City Planning Commission

         25  stopped counting at 129 different languages.
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          2                 Councilman Monserrate and I share the

          3  same, we're coterminous with our districts and we

          4  have the same multilingual population. I know that I

          5  hear what the cost of it is, and I also hear,

          6  regrettably, that English that should be spoken.

          7  That one must learn English in order to really

          8  function in this City.

          9                 The fact is that they are, they are

         10  learning the language, and that does not mean that

         11  they don't have assistance to understand it better,

         12  to take part in their children's education, and I

         13  think that this bill does that. Maybe there are some

         14  things that that's what hearings are about, to work

         15  together to make it work for the children and to

         16  make it work for the City of New York.

         17                 So, I hope that it can e done, and

         18  that the Administration will see fit to support this

         19  because it is right, and it need to be, and it

         20  doesn't mean that perhaps there isn't some

         21  negotiations, or what it is that the Administration

         22  may not be pleased with.

         23                 So, the door is open. I want to thank

         24  you all. And I know that my district and the City of

         25  New York can only benefit from this because we need
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          2  to truly, truly help people to understand the

          3  system, and in doing that they do learn English. But

          4  more than that, they're able to help. Because we can

          5  have all the incentives we want for parents to take

          6  part in the PTAs, and to take part in their

          7  children's education, if they don't continue to

          8  understand what it is, you know one of the reasons

          9  they don't is because they are protecting their

         10  children more than anything else, because they don't

         11  know what it's all about, and they will.

         12                 So, I thank you. I thank my

         13  colleagues, and hopefully the Administration will be

         14  able to work with us so that they can support this

         15  bill.

         16                 Thank you. Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And thank you,

         19  Council Member Monserrate.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: We've been

         21  joined by Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens,

         22  and Council Member Bill DeBlasio.

         23                 I want to begin with a very, very

         24  basic question, and that is, how would you

         25  characterize the primary purpose of these
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          2  translation and interpretation services? What are

          3  you trying to accomplish, because I think that will

          4  help us work backwards in terms of what is the most

          5  ideal solution.

          6                 MR. ALONSO: The primary --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: The light has

          8  to be off for the mic to be on. And if you could

          9  repeat your name so that we know who's speaking.

         10                 MR. ALONSO: My name is Andres Alonso,

         11  Chief of Staff for Deputy Chancellor Carmen Farina.

         12  I think I need to get a little closer.

         13                 Well, first of all, we want to

         14  welcome the parents who are here today.

         15                 The primary purpose of translating

         16  and interpreting communications to parents is to

         17  ensure that parents are provided a meaningful

         18  opportunity to participate and access our programs.

         19                 The primary challenge, and I'd like

         20  to set some of the context for the rest of the

         21  conversation, is that the number of interactions

         22  involving parents that speak a language other than

         23  English in our school system are myriad.

         24                 We have 445,000 students that are

         25  reported in their home language survey that they
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          2  speak a language other than English. We have 192,000

          3  students that are reported in our data systems as

          4  having been born outside the United States, we have

          5  142,000 students that according to our data are

          6  recent immigrants, that means that they have been in

          7  this country for fewer than three years. We have

          8  143,000 ELLs, meaning students that need language

          9  assistance in English, and these numbers are not

         10  necessarily congruent with each other. So, the

         11  number of possible interactions involving parents

         12  that speak a language other than English are

         13  extraordinary, in terms of what could happen in the

         14  school.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay, that's

         16  helpful. I'm asking a very basic, I think you're

         17  perhaps making my question more complicated than it

         18  is. I'm trying to understand what are we trying to

         19  do? Access is sort of a fairly broad term. And I'm a

         20  parent in the public school system, and when I think

         21  about what I'm trying to accomplish as a parent,

         22  access is kind of an abstract word.

         23                 If you say, well, I want to make sure

         24  that my child gets after school services, and I

         25  don't have access, I understand that, but can you
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          2  make it a little more concrete? What are we trying,

          3  what is the nature of the parental involvement that

          4  you're trying to support?

          5                 MR. ALONSO: We are trying to support

          6  parental involvement that helps our parents with the

          7  academic progress of their students.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And what would

          9  you say is the single most important kind of

         10  activity or moment when you would, you know, to put

         11  it another way, if you could only translate one

         12  document, or have only one interpreter at an

         13  interaction, how do you define the kind of ranking

         14  of the most important type of activity?

         15                 MR. ALONSO: Well, the most important

         16  one for me would be a promotion decision. So,

         17  promotion letters, for example, are translated into

         18  the eight languages that represent over 95 percent

         19  of the population in the City.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But you're

         21  already starting late in the game by the tine

         22  there's sort of a lack of promotion, a lot has

         23  interacted. There's been a lot of interactions.

         24                 MR. ALONSO: Absolutely. But the

         25  ranking of the -- there are so many interactions
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          2  that are integral, and whether those interactions

          3  are critical or not are very much a matter of

          4  context in the particular parents and students that

          5  are involved.

          6                 What we have done in the past, and

          7  this has been done in collaboration with

          8  community-based organizations and advocacy groups,

          9  is to identify documents and critical communications

         10  where there is some agreement that they represent

         11  that inability to access those communications,

         12  curtails access to our programs.

         13                 The nature of that list and those

         14  communications changes over time, depending on

         15  changes in the school system in itself. So, it's a

         16  living list in a way.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay, I'm

         18  being even more basic than that. I think you touched

         19  on it maybe earlier.

         20                 Presumably academic progress is one

         21  of those points of access, right? You want parents

         22  to understand how well their children are doing, and

         23  so I would think one of the most important documents

         24  to translate would be the school report card, no?

         25                 MR. ALONSO: Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Now, in your

          3  answers to the question, you say that you only have

          4  it currently in three languages, even though you

          5  recognize eight languages as the most universal; is

          6  that correct?

          7                 MR. ALONSO: That is correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And how did

          9  you decide then to only translate into three when

         10  you, yourselves, say that there are eight that are

         11  the most common?

         12                 MR. ALONSO: That decision is a

         13  historical decision. The three languages cover I

         14  believe 92 percent of the languages of the parents

         15  in the system. Part of what we're doing as we move

         16  forward, and some of the details are in the

         17  testimony and in the Q and A, and part of the reason

         18  why we created a translation unit is to assess the

         19  extent to which a language standard has or has not

         20  been met, and begin to move forward towards making

         21  sure that documents such as a report card are

         22  available in all eight languages.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: How many

         24  students does the eight percent who are not covered

         25  by the three languages, regarding the school report
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          2  cards, how many kids are we talking about, those

          3  eight percent?

          4                 MR. ALONSO: Eight percent might be

          5  the wrong number, but if you think of the system as

          6  having --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, you said

          8  92 percent.

          9                 MR. ALONSO: Correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, 92 plus

         11  eight is 100, no?

         12                 MR. ALONSO: I would say about 80,000.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Eighty

         14  thousand.

         15                 So, this policy that we've had since,

         16  when did we start translating the report cards in

         17  three languages?

         18                 MR. ALONSO: I don't know. That was

         19  before our time. I think three or four years ago.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, three or

         21  four years ago we started translating the report

         22  cards into the three of presumably the most dominant

         23  languages, I would think Spanish, Cantonese,

         24  Mandarin; are those the three?

         25                 MR. ALONSO: Those are two out of the
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          2  three.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I'm a little

          4  surprised that you don't know off the top of your

          5  head what are the top three languages.

          6                 MR. ALONSO: I believe Russian.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Russian,

          8  Spanish and --

          9                 MR. ALONSO: Chinese languages.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Which one,

         11  Cantonese or Mandarin.

         12                 MR. PALMA: In the written form, it's

         13  Chinese.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I see. Got

         15  you.

         16                 So, there four years ago someone made

         17  the decision to disenfranchise 80,000, and if you

         18  think of mother, father, grandmother, it's obviously

         19  several parents potentially, 80,000 kids whose

         20  parents might not be able to read the school report

         21  card.

         22                 I understand that was not a decision

         23  made under your watch, although the Chancellor has

         24  been in now for three years, and so you're just

         25  making the decision to expand the translation of the
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          2  school report card to eight languages; is that

          3  correct?

          4                 MR. PALMA: A lot of these documents

          5  are also being constantly updated and revised on a

          6  yearly basis. So I understand that that particular

          7  document, it is on our to-do list to translate, we

          8  want to make sure we have the final copy, so that's

          9  translated into eight languages.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, when the

         11  kids get their school report card on June 28th, will

         12  it be translated into eight languages, or not?

         13                 MR. PALMA: I'll have to get specifics

         14  as to when the English will be finally updated and

         15  finalized of the most recent report card.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, I don't

         17  know about your kids report card, but my kid's

         18  report card is somewhat individualized in the sense

         19  that not only do we have these rankings of one to

         20  four, but then there are some comments, so you mean

         21  the template without the comments.

         22                 MR. PALMA: You raise a good point.

         23  That's one of the complications of the documents

         24  such as the report card. There is a template and it

         25  gives the opportunity to have open-ended answers,
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          2  and then the question is what to do to translate

          3  those comments. There are specific details about

          4  each particular student.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Now, they

          6  often don't seem very specific, but yes, in theory

          7  they are.

          8                 So, are you saying that by this, I

          9  know my child will get his report card June 28th,

         10  what will be the status? Is the plan to have the

         11  report card available in eight languages or only

         12  three or four or five? What is the plan?

         13                 MR. PALMA: At this point it's to have

         14  it at three languages as it stands today, until we

         15  receive a final copy and it gets translated into the

         16  additional languages.

         17                 We want to make sure we're working

         18  off the final English copy. It's my understanding

         19  it's being updated.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, you don't

         21  expect by this school year to be able to offer it

         22  into eight languages?

         23                 MR. PALMA: No. If it's not updated,

         24  no.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, it has
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          2  to be updated in the sense that it has to be ready

          3  to go for the English speakers, the native speakers

          4  of English.

          5                 MR. PALMA: Right. But the report card

          6  as it stands this year is probably similar to how it

          7  was last year.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Right.

          9                 MR. PALMA: So, we are waiting to get

         10  the updated English version. I don't have a date for

         11  you, but I can provide you with a date.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, Mr.

         13  Alonso is in charge with Carmen Farina of learning

         14  and instruction, so couldn't he tell you, maybe

         15  whisper in your ear, tell you when is the English

         16  version of it going to be updated? Is it going to be

         17  changed, first of all?

         18                 MS. SANTO: The report card right now

         19  is under review because of many of the issues that

         20  you brought up, that it is a document that we want

         21  to make accessible to parents and quite

         22  comprehensible. And, so, it is currently under

         23  review.

         24                 We do not expect that for this year

         25  we'll have the updated version, but certainly going
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          2  into next year, we will. At that point we're trying

          3  to make sure that we have dropped down many that are

          4  specific and clear so that they can also be easily

          5  translated and available in multiple languages.

          6                 This is key to our activity to make

          7  sure that what we do produce is comprehensible,

          8  accessible to parents, and there is a level of

          9  clarity and also a facility so that we can also

         10  incorporate the translations in the use of the

         11  multiple languages in this process.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I guess it's

         13  just a little disappointing that it seems it's

         14  taking years and years. I can't imagine when your

         15  predecessor started out why they would go to all

         16  this trouble and translate it into only three, when

         17  you, yourselves, are saying that there are eight

         18  dominant languages.

         19                 But be that as it may, I think the

         20  answer is that by this June 28th, you don't expect

         21  to have the school report card in the additional

         22  five languages.

         23                 Let me go back to the earlier point,

         24  because I think it's important to understand exactly

         25  what the goals of the translation unit are, and also
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          2  whether it makes sense to do this centrally or not.

          3  That's really what I was trying to get at.

          4                 We asked in our questions about kind

          5  of the ad hoc nature of the translation currently

          6  going on.

          7                 You could see that as negative, that

          8  it's ad hoc, or you could see that as a positive in

          9  the sense that my experience is where parents most

         10  need to access information, is not at Tweed, not at

         11  the region, but at their school, and that the areas

         12  that they're most concerned with are the safety of

         13  their children, the transportation of their

         14  children. Of course their academic progress and

         15  special ed.

         16                 So, let me just ask you a sort of

         17  philosophical question: Why do this centrally at

         18  all? Why not do this locally? Because that's where

         19  most of the needs are. That's not to say that on a

         20  federal mandate there isn't some need to access the

         21  DOE, but --

         22                 MR. ALONSO: Well, I think

         23  philosophically we agree with you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But you're

         25  doing it centrally.
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          2                 MR. ALONSO: We're doing it centrally

          3  in order to report what is going on in the schools.

          4  And let me give you a little bit more detail so that

          5  we fully communicate the extent to which we think

          6  that the issue is both about what's going on

          7  centrally and what's going on in the schools.

          8                 There are many documents that are

          9  generated throughout the systems that stem from

         10  either Tweed, the central offices, or the regions.

         11  For those documents it is -- and some of them are

         12  quite voluminous and are quite, quite significant to

         13  the field, the discipline code for example, is an

         14  example of that.

         15                 For those documents, the central unit

         16  has a need. At the school level, the number of

         17  languages involved is huge. The concentration of the

         18  kids is quite valuable. Part of the feedback from

         19  the field in thinking through the issues after the

         20  unit migrated to our department, was the fact that

         21  much of the discussion focuses on the eight high

         22  incidence languages, but what the field appears to

         23  be telling us, and some of the community-based

         24  organizations, as well, is that schools marshal

         25  their resources to meet the needs of kids when they
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          2  have critical numbers of kids that speak a

          3  particular language in their schools.

          4                 It is when kids fall outside of

          5  enclaves, or when their resources in terms of staff

          6  or community are not there for schools that parents

          7  are left on their own. As part of the plan moving

          8  forward, we concentrated resources centrally, but as

          9  part of those resources we provided for

         10  interpretation services to schools. We're also

         11  providing for partnerships with community-based

         12  organizations that is part of our budget, and then

         13  we are going to provide funding to schools based

         14  upon needs, after the needs assessment of where

         15  there is a match between resources and the need to

         16  the schools, in order to make sure that there is

         17  supplementation at the school level for the efforts

         18  of the central unit.

         19                 You can speak a little more about how

         20  it's actually going to work out in practice.

         21                 MR. PALMA: Let me add to that the

         22  fact that the first nine months of the existence of

         23  the unit has, there have not been obvious signs of

         24  progress but internally there have been huge leaps

         25  and bounds of what we've done to add structure
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          2  necessary so we can get to the school site and

          3  support them with the resources.

          4                 Let me add that in Los Angeles, for

          5  example, after five years, and it's the most

          6  comprehensive unit in the country, nevertheless it's

          7  a project in progress. So there's always room for

          8  improvement. Here with the unit, its existence in

          9  the nine months is building the infrastructure,

         10  identifying the need, what meetings to cover, what

         11  documents to cover, because there are several

         12  different parameters that apply to the translation

         13  of documents, to that of covering meetings such as

         14  this one with the equipment and the headphones and

         15  the batteries that may go wrong, and so forth, and

         16  the channels and interference and so forth.

         17                 So, in identifying that, in bringing

         18  on board professional translators and interpreters

         19  who know to play the role as interpreter and act as

         20  a bridge, as mutual point person, providing

         21  translation resources to schools, such as bilingual

         22  glossaries in the top eight languages, so there is

         23  consistency among terminology, style guides, the use

         24  of translation memory when possible so that they can

         25  be an efficient use of translations that were
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          2  previously completed for easy updates of documents

          3  that happen on a yearly basis.

          4                 These are all the shortcuts and

          5  resources that we can develop as a central unit and

          6  pass onto the school.

          7                 Also --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But let me

          9  just interrupt for a second. I understand the value

         10  of rationalizing the system, which it sounds like

         11  that's what you're trying to do and so that you have

         12  some sort of infrastructure to build on so that

         13  you're not creating a new every document and it

         14  sounds like you're thinking it through, but take,

         15  for example, the discipline code, I mean it happens

         16  to be I think an unfortunate example because the

         17  discipline code is not distributed in English. I

         18  mean, it's a document that often I'm sure there are

         19  hundreds of thousands of copies somewhere in some

         20  closet -- I'm a parent in the New York City school

         21  system, I've never gotten a copy of the discipline

         22  code. I've gone to countless meetings with parents.

         23  I always ask them, have you gotten a copy of the

         24  discipline code?

         25                 Let's just ask: How many parents here
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          2  have gotten a copy of the discipline code? Raise

          3  your hand. Has anyone here gotten a copy in English

          4  or in another language. There seems to be someone

          5  raising their hand. In English you've gotten a copy.

          6  So, there are a few people. And I see someone up

          7  here who has gotten a copy. It looks to me like

          8  about six out of 150 people. So, my fear is that you

          9  will quite excellently and perhaps expensively,

         10  produce these documents and they will be stock piled

         11  somewhere and not actually get to the schools. And I

         12  wonder whether we would be better off having a real

         13  sense of ranking of what is absolutely essential,

         14  what would be good but not essential, and what, in

         15  an ideal world everybody would get and how are you

         16  going to determine that?

         17                 MR. ALONSO: Well, if I might speak?

         18  The discipline code, for example, it's been

         19  translated into eight languages plus Braille.

         20                 Principals have to sign --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Can you bring

         22  the mic a little bit further down?

         23                 MR. ALONSO: Principals have to sign

         24  off and verify that it's been disseminated.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I've been
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          2  through this with Rose. I've been through this with

          3  Rose.

          4                 MR. ALONSO: Good.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Doesn't

          6  happen.

          7                 MR. ALONSO: It gets to part of what

          8  was in my testimony, which is that this is a central

          9  problem but also a school-based problem, and this

         10  will become a successful enterprise when school

         11  resources are mobilized and the issues of

         12  translation are brought to the fore, as part of the

         13  planning process of the school in order to meet the

         14  needs of parents.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But you're

         16  talking like a McKinsey consultant.

         17                 Were you a McKinsey consultant?

         18                 MR. ALONSO: No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: No, okay.

         20  That's good to know.

         21                 I just don't -- you're talking about

         22  schools marshaling resources. They don't have

         23  resources. They're spending what they have. Here is

         24  my question. Why not take the $10 million that you

         25  guys are proposing to spend, and I want to get into
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          2  exactly whether this is new money or old money in a

          3  second, and simply give that money to the schools so

          4  that they can say here are the ten most important

          5  documents we need to translate, here are the

          6  meetings where we need simultaneous interpretation;

          7  why are you guys in the business at all? Why not,

          8  for example, at the school report card have a

          9  principal and a parent coordinator working to do

         10  that. Why, maybe we should cut out the middle man,

         11  is my question.

         12                 I know that would put you guys out of

         13  a job. I'm just wondering, give me a coherent

         14  rationale for why it should be done at Tweed rather

         15  than at the school level.

         16                 MR. PALMA: Well, our strategy is

         17  two-pronged; to get as much done simply at the

         18  central level, at the regional level, and also to

         19  support what you just mentioned, at the school

         20  level.

         21                 One of the things that we discovered,

         22  that I discovered in this group, and as that you

         23  mentioned, is that documentation is available in

         24  several languages.

         25                 One of the problems that we're
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          2  encountering is the dissemination to the ultimate

          3  user, which is apparent.

          4                 And one of the things that we're

          5  focusing on is not only translating having these

          6  materials ready, which they are in most cases, but

          7  making them available to parents, making them

          8  available to CBOs to help us in the dissemination

          9  and whatever other methods possible, to get the

         10  information out there.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But you're not

         12  really answering my question. Why not have the

         13  school report card translated, since it's

         14  individualized in any case in terms of the child,

         15  why not have that happen at the school level?

         16                 My fear is that, you know, it takes

         17  you guys sort of a year and a half to do anything.

         18  It's expensive, and it doesn't necessarily get

         19  distributed.

         20                 So, what is the rationale for doing

         21  it centrally at all?

         22                 MR. ALONSO: Well, I don't want to

         23  talk like a McKinsey consultant but there are

         24  economies of scale.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I never see
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          2  them. I don't see it for toilet paper, I don't see

          3  it for computers. I've never, in six years of being

          4  on the Education Committee, I've heard many promises

          5  of economies of scale, and I never see them. And I

          6  notice, by the way, that your pro word translation,

          7  you have the disadvantage. My brother happens to be

          8  a professional translator and interpreter and I

          9  asked him how much he charges per word, doesn't seem

         10  to me you guys are getting market rates. It sounds

         11  like you're paying a pretty penny.

         12                 MR. PALMA: Well, he's also a

         13  freelancer; am I correct?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

         15                 MR. PALMA: Okay. Well, one of the

         16  things, one of the RFP we're working on finalizing

         17  is bringing a partner on board as an agency, not as

         18  a freelancer. As an agency you can coordinate

         19  hundreds of languages, not just one.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Of course.

         21                 MR. PALMA: So, that's one of the

         22  advantages and you get back a lot more.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, let me

         24  just understand, your argument, the economy of

         25  scale's argument is the first argument at least
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          2  that's been put forward. Your argument is that it

          3  will be done more efficiently if Tweed does it.

          4                 Efficiency and Tweed seem to me like

          5  oxymorons but that's your argument.

          6                 MR. ALONSO: Let me finish making my

          7  argument.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

          9                 MR. ALONSO: The argument that I was

         10  making, first of all, we are listening to what the

         11  field is telling us. What they are telling us is

         12  that once again, getting to the issue of the

         13  multiplicity of the needs, the fact that you might

         14  have 20 languages in a school, and regardless of how

         15  much, $10 million is not going to get you the needs

         16  of the schools if every school has to duplicate its

         17  efforts.

         18                 The purpose of this is somehow to

         19  create a clearing house so that schools get their

         20  benefit of the resources that is done centrally, and

         21  they have extra resources in order to duplicate

         22  their needs.

         23                 Maria.

         24                 MS. SANTOS: Also, within the

         25  activities of the translation unit, there are core
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          2  documents that speak to the rights and

          3  responsibilities of parents, to the rights and

          4  responsibilities of service for the parents that

          5  need to be clearly articulated across the community.

          6                 They cannot be interpreted by

          7  multiple parties. They need to be clear and succinct

          8  so that it is clear what is expected of

          9  professionals, what are the rights and

         10  responsibilities of parents.

         11                 We also need in the system to be very

         12  forthright in saying these are the certain kinds of

         13  expectations, in terms of educational programs, and

         14  be able to clearly articulate it across all

         15  communities.

         16                 These types of documents generated

         17  centrally produced in language that is

         18  comprehensible to our parent community creates a

         19  common understanding, a common language, speaking

         20  about the educational programs.

         21                 Whereas, schools have specific goals

         22  and activities that they interpret, at that point we

         23  support them in carrying out their particular

         24  message.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, given the
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          2  sort of incredibly regulated framework, and all of

          3  the volumes of regulation, you feel that there's no

          4  other way than to do it centrally.

          5                 Let me ask you this: Are you aware,

          6  and I'll ask Mr. Palma this, are you aware of how

          7  Charter schools provide translation services and

          8  interpretations? Is there anything that we can

          9  learn?

         10                 I know the chancellor is a big

         11  supporter of charter schools, obviously they don't

         12  have the central voluminous documents, although they

         13  are subject to No Child Left Behind, they are

         14  subject to State law and so forth; how do they do

         15  translation or interpretation?

         16                 MR. PALMA: They access whatever

         17  resources they could obtain, whether it be through

         18  bilingual personnel or contracting a vendor to

         19  provide the services, or using CBOs to assist them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And is it of a

         21  high quality? Is it a model to look at for how to do

         22  this?

         23                 MR. PALMA: Well, we are practicing

         24  that model into our strategy here. One of the

         25  questions is quality, and whether or not they're at
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          2  a standard that we feel comfortable providing

          3  interpretation at certain events, or translation of

          4  documents.

          5                 I've seen documents translated by

          6  school site personnel or by other organizations with

          7  huge grammatical mistakes, and this is what I want

          8  to be very careful when we do commit to having other

          9  resources, especially school site personnel, as to

         10  the level of the quality.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, I'm not

         12  sure that the DOE is a model for quality. I remember

         13  very clearly that the due date for the NCLB letters

         14  that went out two years ago, the due date was

         15  different in Spanish than in English. They made that

         16  mistake.

         17                 MR. PALMA: Well, that's what we're

         18  here to correct, with the unit and with the

         19  proofreading and editing standards and process we

         20  have in place.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Can you help

         22  the DOE in English as well, since they have trouble

         23  with grammar there too?

         24                 MR. PALMA: In fact, our goal, when we

         25  put as a translation is to make it as clear as
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          2  possible, even clearer than the English.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay. Can I

          4  just read an answer to one of the questions? I don't

          5  know, did you write this, or did someone else write

          6  the answers to the inquiry?

          7                 MR. PALMA: It was a group effort.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: It was a group

          9  effort.

         10                 Let me give you an example of a

         11  sentence that I view as utterly incomprehensible in

         12  English.

         13                 "Principals report access to

         14  professional translators, access to funding and

         15  flexibility in using staff is recommended levels to

         16  bridge their school level needs."

         17                 As a former college professor, that

         18  wouldn't cut the mustard. So I do think it remains a

         19  problem in English that there's a lot of, I don't

         20  know if it's educational jargon, even the testimony,

         21  you know, there's all this lingo. "The unit

         22  migrated." You're in charge of the unit, right?

         23  That's what that means. It migrated, now you're in

         24  charge of it? Someone else used to be in charge of

         25  it?

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 MR. ALONSO: Correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I assume

          4  "migration," that's what it means.

          5                 MR. ALONSO: Correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Just plain

          7  English, we're trying to engage the public, and we

          8  need help in English.

          9                 But let me go on to two other issues

         10  and then I'll open up the questions and comments to

         11  my colleague.

         12                 I wanted to ask you about 3-1-1. You

         13  said in the answers to the questions that 3-1-1

         14  maintains content on over 100 DOE topic areas. Can I

         15  ask you, have you ever personally, I'll ask all

         16  three of you, maybe you can just answer yes or no.

         17                 Mr. Alonso, have you ever called

         18  3-1-1 and asked an educational question?

         19                 MR. ALONSO: No.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay. Have

         21  you, Mr. Palma?

         22                 MR. PALMA: No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Have you? No,

         24  okay.

         25                 I have, and I have never, in English,
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          2  I have never gotten an answer. Never, ever, ever.

          3                 So, one advice I would offer to you,

          4  Mr. Palma, if you're interested in Quality, you have

          5  to verify that what you're saying is true, because

          6  they can answer educational questions.

          7                 And, so, one of the questions I have

          8  for you is, is the 3-1-1, which is a great concept,

          9  and I still maintain that it's better for

         10  information than to solve an actual problem,

         11  educational or otherwise, you know, I very rarely

         12  encounter parents who use the 3-1-1 system. Maybe it

         13  will get to a point where that is natural for them

         14  to do, but that's not where they go for help.

         15  Particularly, if they're non-native speakers of

         16  English.

         17                 So, where are -- might it make more

         18  sense to create some separate hot line for parents

         19  so that they can access these services?

         20                 MR. PALMA: To begin the Over The

         21  Thorn Interpretation Services, as we have spelled

         22  out for our plans, are for incoming and outgoing

         23  phone calls. And I'll explain that a little bit.

         24                 The outgoing phone calls for the

         25  school site level is when a counselor, a nurse, a
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          2  principal or someone from the school staff wants to

          3  make a phone call to report an incident, an injury,

          4  or another event, to the parent, where there is a

          5  language barrier, that's where you would get an

          6  interpreter involved and resolve the issue over the

          7  phone.

          8                 Likewise, if parents were to call the

          9  Call Center, for example, at the Department of

         10  Education, there are currently Spanish bilingual

         11  assistants, and we're soon tapping into providing

         12  these over-the-phone language services for incoming

         13  phone calls.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, a parent

         15  who has a question is not supposed to call 3-1-1

         16  now? They're supposed to call the Call Center?

         17                 MR. PALMA: If there's a question

         18  regarding the Department of Education, my

         19  understanding, they can get information through

         20  3-1-1. Also, what I'm mentioning is that in addition

         21  to that, to get information you can call the Call

         22  Center for the Department of Education.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Because it

         24  says in all the schools to call 3-1-1. Those

         25  posters. Erin just got us a copy of one. So, is that

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  what you're expecting, parents to call 3-1-1?

          3                 MR. PALMA: I think that's been the

          4  process in place for awhile now.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And are you

          6  aware that it doesn't work very well?

          7                 MR. PALMA: No. I'm not aware.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

          9                 We've been joined by Council Member

         10  Dennis Gallagher.

         11                 Thank you for being here. And Council

         12  Member Domenic Recchia. And I think I recognized

         13  Council Member DeBlasio before.

         14                 Council Member Monserrate, do you

         15  have questions?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you

         17  very much, Madam Chair.

         18                 I have a few questions regarding

         19  what's currently being done.

         20                 I'm reviewing right now the responses

         21  that your agency gave. So, I just want to be clear.

         22  Your office has been in place nine months; is that

         23  not correct?

         24                 MR. PALMA: That's correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Nine
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          2  months. And when it was initially established, what

          3  was the staffing? Staffing. What was the staffing?

          4                 MR. PALMA: When it first started, it

          5  was just myself.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. How

          7  many staff now do you have in your unit?

          8                 MR. PALMA: We're up to nine.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: You have

         10  nine staffers today. And so that I'm clear, and the

         11  folks that are attending the hearing are clear, how

         12  many languages do you currently translate into?

         13  Translate for?

         14                 MR. PALMA: We translate into eight

         15  languages, and sometimes more when asked.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. But

         17  as a whole, you testified today that there is

         18  basically three languages that received more

         19  translation; is that correct, or is that incorrect?

         20                 MR. PALMA: No, it's incorrect.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay.

         22  Well, then I have some other questions then. Now I'm

         23  really confused.

         24                 When I'm looking at your responses

         25  here, regarding the different documents that are
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          2  translated, for instance, the bill of students'

          3  rights and responsibilities. Eight languages, that

          4  was your response; is that correct? Okay.

          5                 But then if I go to a report card, it

          6  said the template is only in three languages; is

          7  that correct?

          8                 MR. PALMA: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So, for

         10  report cards you provide a template in three

         11  languages. But if a parent wanted a bill of student

         12  rights and responsibilities, it's translated into

         13  eight languages?

         14                 MR. PALMA: That's correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And then

         16  if a parent has a special education student, their

         17  IEPs are available in four languages upon request.

         18  So, my question is, how do you establish, you know,

         19  which document gets four languages, which document

         20  gets eight, which document gets three, what's the

         21  process that you establish?

         22                 MR. PALMA: As Mr. Alonso made

         23  reference earlier, some of these decisions were made

         24  years ago, and now we're in a position to go back

         25  and fill in the gaps and the holes to get everything
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          2  to an eight-language standard.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: These

          4  decisions were made years ago, but the office has

          5  been in place for nine months. We now have nine

          6  staffers and your responses to this Committee when

          7  they made these queries to you are here lined out.

          8  And what I'm saying is I don't find how is this

          9  comprehensive in any way, all the different

         10  documents, you have different languages assigned to

         11  different documents, like a parent can get the Bill

         12  of Students' Rights and Responsibilities in eight

         13  languages but the report card template in only

         14  three?

         15                 MR. ALONSO: Our commitment --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I can't

         17  hear you, sir.

         18                 MR. ALONSO: I am trying to get to

         19  this mic.

         20                 Our commitment is that we will

         21  translate those documents into eight languages given

         22  time now that we have responsibility for the

         23  Translations and Interpretations Unit.

         24                 The volume involved in translating

         25  many of these documents is large. Throughout the
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          2  first year of the existence of the Translations

          3  Unit, at the beginning the unit needed time in order

          4  to staff. It still needs to staff up to its full

          5  roster of 26 full-time translators.

          6                 We are committed to bring to a

          7  systematic process by which all those documents that

          8  you see in that list, more documents that will make

          9  it into that list will be translated into eight

         10  languages. Part of the work of the unit over the

         11  first year has been in identifying which documents

         12  were translated into how many languages, and also

         13  which languages still needed to be translated and

         14  the level of need that the different officers in the

         15  schools were identifying for this work to be done.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Let me

         17  say, I appreciate your commitment but I also know

         18  what your written response has been. But having said

         19  that, let me say that I'll give you the benefit of

         20  the doubt and that I appreciate.

         21                 MR. ALONSO: Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And I

         23  believe that you're sincere towards your commitment.

         24                 Is there a timetable established for

         25  when your full commitment, and have you identified

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  different phases of that implementation?

          3                 MR. ALONSO: It's in the question and

          4  answer. What we've committed to is by the start of

          5  the new school year we will have the processes in

          6  place in order to make sure that the framework is

          7  there for the unit to do its work, including the

          8  over the phone interpretations so that school level

          9  issues are addressed.

         10                 By the end of the next school year,

         11  our commitment is that the unit will be in full

         12  operation, and that includes translating all those

         13  documents that have been listed as critical

         14  communications in eight languages.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Do you

         16  have a list of the critical documents?

         17                 MR. ALONSO: We can provide you a

         18  list. Many of the documents that you see in a list

         19  that we already provided comes from

         20  previously-established lists. We'll get you that

         21  list later in the week.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Council Member

         23  Yassky and then Council Member Recchia.

         24                 I'm sorry, I have to announce that we

         25  have a little bit of a snafu with, there were two
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          2  hearings scheduled for this room, so if you're here

          3  for the siting of the marine transfer stations,

          4  that's in that room.

          5                 Is anyone here for that hearing? It's

          6  in the Committee room, if you are. Thank you.

          7                 Council Member Yassky.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

          9                 I want to ask you about the parent

         10  coordinators, because it seems to me while, again, I

         11  think that we ought to give parents who don't speak

         12  English, you know, every opportunity involved, just

         13  as English-speaking parents are. I think we could go

         14  a long way toward helping to involve parents with

         15  limited English proficiency by having somebody at

         16  the school who can communicate with them.

         17                 My question is, do you know how many,

         18  or what percentage of the parent coordinators at

         19  schools with large, let's start with

         20  Spanish-speaking parents, parent populations, speak

         21  Spanish?

         22                 MR. ALONSO: Forty-two percent of our

         23  parent coordinators are bilingual. And what we've

         24  done, as part of the needs assessment, is to

         25  identify the number of schools that have large
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          2  numbers of particular types of populations, and the

          3  extent to which the parent coordinator in that

          4  school is bilingual in the primary language of those

          5  parents.

          6                 So, for example, 79 of the schools

          7  that have over 25 percent of the population as ELLs

          8  has a bilingual parent coordinator that speaks the

          9  primary language of those parents.

         10                 Sixty-three percent of schools that

         11  have 15 or more ELLs have a parent coordinator that

         12  is bilingual. So, what we've been trying to do,

         13  Councilman, is to target the process for going

         14  forward, so that we're identifying where the

         15  bilingual staff is in schools, understanding that

         16  there are union issues involved, in terms of asking

         17  them to do things that go beyond their job

         18  descriptions, thinking through a process of offering

         19  professional development, to staff on a voluntary

         20  basis so that they can be more informed and help

         21  with this process, and more importantly, identifying

         22  where principals identify need and in what languages

         23  and where they identify that they have the resources

         24  or they don't have the resources. For example, let's

         25  say that there are 415 schools in this system that
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          2  say that they need translation and interpretation

          3  services in Chinese. To the extent that you have the

          4  same principals identifying 265 for those schools as

          5  having their resources within their communities to

          6  meet those needs, then we know that what we need to

          7  do then is to target the difference. And in that

          8  respect, that is where the integration of central,

          9  regional and school level support becomes important,

         10  because it's much easier to serve the need of a

         11  school community when there is a concentration of

         12  kids of that community in a school and a

         13  concentration of staff, then in schools where there

         14  is wide variability in terms of need but perhaps

         15  concentration in terms of resources.

         16                 In those circumstances, that's when

         17  the central unit becomes indispensable because the

         18  central unit can serve to link the schools where

         19  there are resources, or it can provide resources

         20  itself so that the schools are not left at a loss.

         21                 What the principles are identifying

         22  is that their most important need is the lack of

         23  access to train translators, and in that respect

         24  that is where the work of the unit, the fact that

         25  it's going to have 26 full-time translators, is
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          2  going to have access to translating and interpreting

          3  in over 150 languages becomes the key.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. No,

          5  look, I get that, and I'm sure that you're going to

          6  have many principals that say that is the key need.

          7  And I certainly am not suggesting that you want to

          8  put coordinators in the role of being unofficial

          9  translators, and that's going to be now their job.

         10  That's not what I'm trying to say. I simply trying

         11  to say that where you have that role of parent

         12  coordinator, it seems to be pretty critical in a

         13  school with certainly 25 percent but, you know, as

         14  many schools in my area, it might be 60, 70 percent

         15  where the parents' primary language is a particular

         16  language other than English, be it Spanish, Chinese,

         17  Russian.

         18                 I just want to make sure I got what

         19  you said. Did you say 70 -- I think it was 72 or 79

         20  percent of the schools that have 25 percent or more

         21  LEP, have a parent coordinator proficient who speaks

         22  that language?

         23                 MR. ALONSO: That is correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. That,

         25  you know, that's good and that must be up from what
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          2  it was I'd say a year ago, so am I correct that

          3  that's up substantially from a year ago?

          4                 MR. ALONSO: I'm not sure, but it's

          5  certainly an effort that we've made in terms of

          6  matching parent coordinators with the primary

          7  language needs of the schools.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And you spoke

          9  about professional development, if a parent

         10  coordinator wants to, who is in a Chinese-speaking

         11  school with many parents who speak Chinese, if they

         12  want professional development in Chinese

         13  instruction, is that available to them?

         14                 MR. ALONSO: What we are -- as part of

         15  the plan, we are committing to provide professional

         16  development to the parent coordinators in

         17  translation and interpretation needs.

         18                 To the extent the professional

         19  development goes beyond translation and

         20  interpretation and it becomes about their job of

         21  their parent coordinator, meaning helping bridge the

         22  parent with their communities in terms of access or

         23  curriculum, et cetera, et cetera, that is very much

         24  within the jurisdiction and the charge of the Office

         25  of Parent Engagement, and we will be providing
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          2  professional development for parent coordinators.

          3  There will be an event some time in July in which

          4  parent coordinators will come together and share

          5  best practices and professional development in terms

          6  of the needs of those communities enrolling parts of

          7  the curriculum, it will be very much part of the

          8  focus of that.

          9                 Maria can also I think mention some

         10  of the work that she had been doing with parents and

         11  ELLs in that area.

         12                 MS. SANTOS: I do want to say that

         13  indeed working with the parent coordinators we are

         14  tooling the parent coordinators to work with the

         15  high-need populations, and also with the language

         16  needs of parents, so that they can access the

         17  resources, if they don't have the language, know how

         18  to access the language grids to provide the kind of

         19  information to parents.

         20                 This is key to our effort. It's an

         21  ongoing effort. You initiated quite a bit of work

         22  this year. In addition to that, we have organized

         23  throughout the City parent conferences for parents

         24  that have students that are learning the English

         25  language.
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          2                 As a matter of fact, this Saturday at

          3  Pace University we're having a Citywide parent

          4  conferences where we will have simultaneous

          5  interpretation for parents. We already know that we

          6  have 15 language groups to address there, and we're

          7  providing the kind of services for them. This is an

          8  effort throughout the City, throughout all of the

          9  regions, as well as Citywide opportunities, to

         10  expand the opportunities for parents to engage.

         11                 MR. ALONSO: Let me add that the

         12  Executive Director of the Office of Parent

         13  Engagement was supposed to be here today. She is not

         14  because of a personal emergency, but I mean we

         15  thought carefully about who should be here. I chose

         16  to be here as a representative of the Deputy

         17  Chancellor, since she has been charged with this

         18  right now, and we think it's very important.

         19                 The fact that the issue of

         20  translating for parents involves very much parents,

         21  ELLs and the technical resources of the Department,

         22  and there has to be as well a cross functional

         23  element which bridges those needs with other

         24  offices. It was part of the reason why we thought

         25  that we should all be here.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, I

          3  understand.

          4                 Just one last question. Do you have a

          5  rough sense, I'm not looking for a specific number,

          6  but if, you know, we've now got roughly

          7  three-quarters of the schools where you'd want the

          8  parent coordinator to have that efficiency, are

          9  almost all where the language of the parents is

         10  Spanish, do you know if you've been able to do it

         11  for the Russian, Chinese, Creole schools? My guess

         12  is those are harder positions to fill; do you have a

         13  sense of that?

         14                 MR. ALONSO: We have parent

         15  coordinators who speak Haitian, Creole, who speak

         16  Arabic, who speak Russian, et cetera, and there has

         17  been a matching of those parent coordinators with

         18  those schools.

         19                 Again, going back to earlier in our

         20  testimony about the importance of low-incidence

         21  languages and the difficulty of meeting their needs,

         22  it would be -- we couldn't possibly have enough

         23  parent coordinators to meet the needs of those

         24  parents, because they're distributed throughout the

         25  system.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

          3                 MR. ALONSO: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes. Mr.

          5  Palma?

          6                 MR. PALMA: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: How are you?

          8                 MR. PALMA: Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: You came, if

         10  I'm correct, from Los Angeles?

         11                 MR. PALMA: That's correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Where you did

         13  this interpretation?

         14                 MR. PALMA: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: And what did

         16  you do that gave you, that brought this notoriety to

         17  you? What did you do in the LA school district for

         18  the interpretation?

         19                 MR. PALMA: The interpretation, well,

         20  first of all, let me begin that there is always a

         21  limitation to the number of resources allocated to

         22  provide interpretation services.

         23                 So, knowing that as a fact, the unit

         24  provided services on a first come, first serve

         25  basis. So, services were available in the schools to
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          2  the unit to request service at any type of event or

          3  meeting. The downfall is, depending who submitted

          4  their request first, who got services. And that

          5  worked in some cases, and some cases it did not.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: What I'm

          7  trying to get at is that we brought you here from

          8  LA, okay? And you were in charge of interpretation

          9  from LA, correct?

         10                 MR. PALMA: That's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: What I'm

         12  trying to say is, what was so great about what you

         13  did, you know what I mean? You know, besides, you

         14  implement this first come first served basis, what

         15  did you -- I mean, how did you run the unit? Like

         16  why did we bring you here from LA, when we have like

         17  hundreds of people in New York City we could find

         18  somebody, why did we pick you?

         19                 MR. PALMA: One of the things about

         20  the transition, and I should be clear, in general it

         21  is a freelance fragmented industry. It's very

         22  uncommon to have a full-time staff and budgeted

         23  office on an ongoing basis, and as a reflection of

         24  that, having full-time translators on board in order

         25  to keep them constantly busy with work, having some
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          2  sort of production standards and providing a service

          3  that ultimately provides the service that ultimately

          4  benefits the parents and their involvement.

          5                 The other school district has over

          6  800 schools, and we provided services into all

          7  languages. The difference between LA and New York is

          8  that 70 percent of the people in Los Angeles are

          9  Spanish speaking and there's less diversity. So,

         10  that's one difference in New York City.

         11                 Nevertheless, bringing on board

         12  vendors that can compliment the services that are

         13  provided with this unit are going to be key.

         14  Interpretation events, on the other hand, in Los

         15  Angeles, was an important factor with equipment,

         16  both radio frequency as the one we have here, and

         17  infrared equipment that we used in Los Angeles, for

         18  places where there was a lot of interference and so

         19  forth. So, there is a lot of structure involved, a

         20  lot of commitment and a lot of work is done.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Are you

         22  planning to develop this in New York City with the

         23  equipment and so forth?

         24                 MR. PALMA: In fact, yes. We plan to

         25  receive our first shipment of equipment tomorrow for
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          2  the event for this Saturday.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Mr. Alonso,

          4  do you want to say something?

          5                 MR. ALONSO: Yes. Yes.

          6                 I think Kleber is a little too modest

          7  so I'm going to try to answer the question for you,

          8  Councilman.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes.

         10                 MR. ALONSO: We looked throughout the

         11  country at how different our systems were dealing

         12  with interpretation, and we found that in many

         13  systems the issues were quite similar.

         14                 LA had gotten to a different point

         15  than most systems, in terms of thinking through the

         16  issues, of addressing the needs of many different

         17  kinds of parents, many different kinds of

         18  interactions. And the system had similar complexity

         19  in New York City and similar skill, so we went after

         20  the one person in the country who seemed to have

         21  wrestled with those issues in the same way that we

         22  need to.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Thank you.

         24                 What percentage of parents speak each

         25  of the top eight languages?
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          2                 MR. ALONSO: English 57 percent,

          3  Spanish 27 percent, Cantonese, Mandarin and other

          4  Chinese languages sometimes somewhere in the two

          5  percent, Bengali -- Russian 1.7 percent, Bengali

          6  1.14 percent, Haitian/Creole .86 percent, Korean

          7  8.83 percent, Irdu .80 percent, Arabic .79 percent.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RECCHIA: All right. Could

          9  you make a photocopy and send it to my office?

         10                 MR. ALONSO: Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RECCHIA: The percentages

         12  for each I think are important for us to have it.

         13                 MR. ALONSO: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RECCHIA: And the last

         15  comment I just want to make is that, I understand

         16  with this translation and its necessity, but what I

         17  really think the big issue is here, and that we have

         18  to bring up, is that we need more ESL classes for

         19  parents.

         20                 We need to have more ESL classes

         21  during the day and after school for the parents.

         22  Because the parents, we're asking them to do more

         23  with their children, but if the parents can't read

         24  and write English, then they can't help their

         25  children.
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          2                 So, in these after school programs, I

          3  have to believe very strongly, is that, yes, we want

          4  translations, but we also have to push these parents

          5  to learn the English language, and sometimes it's

          6  not always correct by giving them the translation

          7  because it doesn't give them, you know, a reason to

          8  learn the English language. So, I think we have to

          9  somewhere reach a medium and start implementing more

         10  of these ESL classes for the parents and help them

         11  learn the language as soon as possible.

         12                 MR. ALONSO: We have, Councilman, over

         13  17,000 adults attending ESL adult classes in the

         14  system.

         15                 In addition to that there are ESL

         16  classes for parents or for at the school level

         17  through grant funding, and also other City agencies

         18  are offering ESL classes for parents.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 MR. ALONSO: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Council Member

         23  Gallagher and then I know Council Member Monserrate

         24  has another question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Hi. Thank
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          2  you. Thank you to your testimony.

          3                 I just have a few questions in your

          4  testimony. Could you indicate how much money this

          5  bill would cost to implement?

          6                 I know initially when, I think it was

          7  Channel 4, had done a preview on this, they had used

          8  a number that was allegedly gained from the

          9  Administration that would have been $20 million; is

         10  that an accurate figure, close to accurate, or have

         11  you done a financial analysis of how much this bill

         12  would cost?

         13                 MR. ALONSO: I have not. And I don't

         14  think that number is accurate.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Is it more,

         16  is it less? And you understand the bill, right?

         17                 Any document, any written material,

         18  any form, any notice, whether preprinted,

         19  handwritten, electronic or otherwise prepared by the

         20  Department, every parent association meeting, the

         21  scope of it, do you have a number of how much it

         22  would cost?

         23                 And if not, how long would it take

         24  you to provide this Council and this Committee and

         25  my office the number of how much it would cost?
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          2                 MR. ALONSO: If you give us two weeks,

          3  we could cost it out for you. But our position has

          4  been that the number of interactions involved is so

          5  extraordinary in nature, and so unpredictable in

          6  terms of what actually happens in school and what is

          7  the meaning of school interactions, that the cost of

          8  providing translation every, and interpretation in

          9  every single interaction to parents would be

         10  prohibitive.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Would it be

         12  fair to ask a range? Is it 20 to 40 million, 40 to

         13  60, 5 million to 20 million?

         14                 MR. ALONSO: It would be irresponsible

         15  for me to give you a range without having done a

         16  costing myself.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Okay. So we

         18  can anticipate that within a two week time period

         19  you will provide the Committee and my office with

         20  the dollar amount, an estimate?

         21                 MR. ALONSO: With full caveats about

         22  the difficulty of estimating exactly those

         23  interactions.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Exactly.

         25                 How many languages are currently
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          2  spoken in the public school system?

          3                 MR. ALONSO: One-hundred and

          4  eighty-three, other than English.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: One-hundred

          6  and eighty-three. So, in my community I have a great

          7  number of Polish immigrants.

          8                 MR. ALONSO: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Would they

         10  be covered under this legislation?

         11                 MR. ALONSO: They would not be.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: And I have

         13  a lot of Italian.

         14                 MR. ALONSO: They would not be.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I have a

         16  lot of German in my community.

         17                 MR. ALONSO: They would not be.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: They would

         19  not be. Okay.

         20                 So, is this the educational act for

         21  all, or the educational equity act just for the top

         22  eight languages?

         23                 Is there other ways that maybe your

         24  translation unit could use money more effectively to

         25  reach out and provide these services?
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          2                 MR. ALONSO: As we have tried to

          3  testify and communicate before the way in which we

          4  have structured a plan in moving forward, not only

          5  takes into account the eight high incidence

          6  languages, but has identified the fact that the

          7  field has told us that low incidence languages,

          8  meaning those languages outside the top eight, often

          9  provide the greatest challenge in terms of meeting

         10  the needs of parents and students at the grade

         11  level, at the school level. And part of what we need

         12  to do is to create a framework and a system through

         13  which we identify the needs of all parents, and we

         14  organize the schools in order to meet those needs.

         15  Part of what the plan provides is funding at the

         16  school level, so that some of the needs of those

         17  parents are addressed, and a system at the central

         18  level which is going to link regions and schools to

         19  resources in order to meet the needs of all parents.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: You know,

         21  in your testimony, or actually in your question and

         22  answer I think you had indicated, and I'm trying to

         23  find it, that certain things you did in multiple

         24  languages, more than the eight that's required by

         25  law, or the top eight, I think it was for the
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          2  school, for the lunch program you translated, and

          3  you said, how many was there? Twelve? Fifteen?

          4                 MR. ALONSO: Thirteen.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thirteen.

          6                 Can you give the languages, what

          7  we've covered in the 13?

          8                 MR. ALONSO: I don't have that off the

          9  top of my head. I can get it to you later.

         10                 Some of the requirements for these

         11  translations are at a legacy. Some -- the State, for

         12  example, translates different documents in different

         13  languages, depending on the origination of some of

         14  the mandates involved, and given the extraordinary

         15  scope of some of these documents, that's part of

         16  what explains the variability until now and their

         17  aim is to bring some kind of coherence to this in

         18  the future.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I'll just

         20  ask if you could do eight languages for some things,

         21  13 languages in this brochure, why not 183 different

         22  languages? And at what point do we stop? Should we

         23  change this to the Department of Transportation and

         24  dwell parking tickets in 183 different languages?

         25  Brochures from the Health Department in 183
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          2  different languages?

          3                 MR. ALONSO: We have struggled with

          4  the issue of the slippery slope, and what are

          5  reasonable steps. I mean, we know that the mandate

          6  is that we take reasonable steps to provide parents

          7  with meaningful access.

          8                 Now, what that means depends on who

          9  the parent is, the communication, et cetera, et

         10  cetera. But we agree with you that what I think

         11  you're trying to get at, that it will make this, the

         12  Department of Education into the Translation

         13  Department of Education and --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: You have a

         15  hard enough time being successful in educating our

         16  children, let alone trying to do this.

         17                 And I just want to point out that in

         18  our school system we've seen reductions of

         19  paraprofessionals that are taken out of the

         20  classroom because we said that we couldn't find

         21  money. I go sometimes to all the schools and they

         22  say they have a hard time getting paper and reams of

         23  paper because they don't have money. They go to a

         24  school-based management system where they have to be

         25  very careful in every single thing that they do
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          2  because they don't have enough money sometimes to

          3  cover budgets, and here we're looking at spending at

          4  a bear minimum $20 million on an educational,

          5  alleged educational bill, that's not going to help

          6  anywhere within the classroom.

          7                 Has the Department of Education set

          8  up any buddy systems where if they have

          9  Italian-speaking parents or Spanish-speaking parents

         10  or Polish-speaking parents as schools that can

         11  volunteer and interact with parents and let them,

         12  you know, like a system of coordination of contact?

         13                 MR. ALONSO: That has been done at the

         14  school level. Something has not been done centrally

         15  in order to create what you're speaking about. Part

         16  of the direction in which we're moving is

         17  identifying the resources at the school level and

         18  partnering with community-based organizations so

         19  that the needs of schools are met in a timely

         20  fashion.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Do you

         22  think you could accomplish a lot of the mandates

         23  that are in this legislation on a voluntary system

         24  with parents throughout the school system? What

         25  percentage do you think you might be able to
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          2  accomplish?

          3                 MR. ALONSO: I would need to think

          4  that through. Maybe that could be part of the

          5  response that you've asked for.

          6                 We think that the solution to the

          7  problem of translation is fundamentally an issue of

          8  school community, that in schools, in communities

          9  and schools that identify this as their need. In

         10  many communities and schools there are sufficient

         11  resources to meet the needs, especially with a

         12  central unit that can provide the core documents

         13  that all schools would need.

         14                 In some schools and some communities,

         15  I think there needs to be some kind of scaffolding

         16  for the schools because of the difficulty of

         17  reaching certain parents.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: When I look

         19  at the legislation and there's parent and teacher

         20  association meetings and you have to have eight

         21  translators readily and available for each meeting,

         22  and maybe if you had those eight in my community,

         23  they wouldn't have Polish and they wouldn't have

         24  Albanian and they wouldn't have Italian or German,

         25  which is a large segment of my area, once you open
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          2  this pandoras box I think ultimately the cost of

          3  this legislation, the cost of enacting it not only

          4  in the Department of Education, but all other

          5  agencies in the City of New York would be

          6  prohibitive and you would see additional tax

          7  increases just to fund translation services.

          8                 So, so far I am absolutely opposed to

          9  this, but I do hope the Department of Education can

         10  look at measures through volunteerism and through

         11  community activism that might be worked on a

         12  school-by-school basis, you might be able to service

         13  more languages, and in addition to it, you would be

         14  able to save the taxpaying citizens of this money,

         15  and you might be able to, if you saved some money,

         16  put the paraprofessionals back in the classroom an

         17  provide more money in the classroom and in the

         18  individual schools.

         19                 Than you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         21                 Before we hear from Council Member

         22  Monserrate, I just want to announce, if there is

         23  anyone here for the siting of marine transfers, it's

         24  in the Committee Room, and please feel free to go

         25  there.
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          2                 Council Member Monserrate.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

          4  Madam Chair. And since Mr. Alonso was so eloquent,

          5  I'm going to direct my question at him.

          6                 I won't ask you about parking tickets

          7  because I know that this is the Education Committee,

          8  so we'll keep it within the scope of the agency that

          9  we're dealing with. You were very forceful in your

         10  statement that you believe this legislation and the

         11  expense to it would be prohibitive; is that not what

         12  you just testified?

         13                 MR. ALONSO: If taken at its word,

         14  yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. And

         16  you said that you were going to forward a document

         17  within two weeks full of what you understand, based

         18  on your analysis, the costs might be coupled with

         19  certain caveats?

         20                 MR. ALONSO: Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. I

         22  want to ask you the following question, because last

         23  year my office asked the Independent Budget Office

         24  to conduct an analysis and they have reported to us

         25  that the Department of Education had not provided to
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          2  them the documents for them to do this analysis; how

          3  would you respond to that?

          4                 MR. ALONSO: I will respond that I

          5  will go back, investigate the request and provide

          6  whatever it is that they requested.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. I

          8  understand that you'll investigate. You came here

          9  today to testify about this bill, and obviously one

         10  of the concerns that has been expressed by one of my

         11  colleagues in Queens is cost.

         12                 MR. ALONSO: Um-hmm.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Yet, you

         14  have not provided to this Committee any estimates of

         15  what you believe this bill would cost.

         16                 MR. ALONSO: What we provided to the

         17  Committee was the budget for the Central Translation

         18  Unit, and since the time of the question and answer

         19  was supplied, we worked on it, we had been working

         20  on identifying --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Let me ask

         22  you this: Do you have any idea what has been my

         23  cost?

         24                 MR. ALONSO: By idea you mean can I

         25  identify a number?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:

          3  Conceptualize, yes.

          4                 MR. ALONSO: I cannot imagine this

          5  bill costing less than -- the range, it's so

          6  difficult to quantify what the bill might be. The

          7  bill is so unclear at times, in terms of what it

          8  asks for, and so comprehensive in terms of what it

          9  asks for. For example, training for all bilingual

         10  personnel, translation of every possible interaction

         11  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I just

         13  find it interesting that in the absence of clarity,

         14  as a professional representing your agency, in the

         15  absence of clarity you have testified that you would

         16  also testify that the cost would be prohibitive.

         17                 MR. ALONSO: Councilman, as I said, I

         18  said that I would try to provide an estimate with

         19  caveats. And part of the reason why we did not

         20  provide a costing out was because of the existence

         21  of those caveats.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I

         23  understand that. What I'm saying then is that you

         24  should be careful when you testify about cost being

         25  prohibitive when you're not clear and an analysis

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  hasn't even been done your office, and the

          3  Independent Budget Office has contacted us to tell

          4  us that your agency has not produced the documents

          5  for them to conduct an independent analysis.

          6                 MR. ALONSO: I accept your comment,

          7  and --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you

          9  very much. Thank you very much.

         10                 Mr. Palma, I have a question for you.

         11                 You have been portrayed as the

         12  superstar for LA, and I'm sure you did fantastic

         13  work there and if you are as talented as they say, I

         14  think that you're a positive acquisition for the

         15  City of New York. What was the budget in LA for

         16  these services?

         17                 MR. PALMA: Three million.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:

         19  Three-million dollars. And your student population

         20  was?

         21                 MR. PALMA: Eight-hundred thousand.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:

         23  Eight-hundred thousand.

         24                 And today if a teacher in a classroom

         25  needed to send a note to a parent who spoke Chinese,
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          2  how would she send that note to a Chinese-speaking

          3  parent that didn't speak English?

          4                 MR. PALMA: Today in New York City?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Yes. Today

          6  in Corona, Queens, there is a Chinese child that's

          7  having a problem in school, and that teacher said,

          8  you know, I need to send a note to your parent

          9  because we need to do X, Y and Z, but your parent

         10  doesn't speak English, and obviously we can't depend

         11  upon the child to translate, unfortunate is too many

         12  times the case; how do we do it?

         13                 MR. PALMA: Well, there are several

         14  options. Assuming there is staff available on-site

         15  to do so, that is one option.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: No, no.

         17                 I want to know, I don't want to talk

         18  about ad hoc or what we might do, I want to know, as

         19  a policy what does the Department of Education do?

         20  What does the policy or the plan in place for this

         21  circumstance, or circumstance similar to it?

         22                 MR. PALMA: The problem in place is to

         23  tackle circumstances similar to that, to send the

         24  documentation to the central unit for translation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So they
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          2  would send a note to you, or to your unit here in

          3  Tweed; is that correct?

          4                 MR. PALMA: Are you talking about now?

          5  Or are you talking about a future plan?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I'm

          7  talking about today.

          8                 MR. PALMA: Today the circumstance is

          9  addressed primarily at the school level.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: At the

         11  school level.

         12                 MR. PALMA: That is what happens.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Is that

         14  the policy of the Department of Education?

         15                 MR. PALMA: That is a default. There

         16  has never been a translation unit in the past in

         17  order to meet with those needs, and because those

         18  kinds of interactions that you're referring to are

         19  so numerous in nature that a central unit will not

         20  be able to accommodate at all.

         21                 Part of what we're trying to put in

         22  place is a structure so that at the regional level,

         23  at the school level and at the central level we

         24  begin to identify the need for those resources.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I'm having
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          2  a really hard time understanding that answer.

          3                 We want a centralized system, but we

          4  have no policy in place that deals with something as

          5  simple as how does a teacher send to a

          6  non-English-speaking parent a note about how we deal

          7  with an issue. On one hand you're telling us we want

          8  centralized, on the other hand you're saying no

          9  policy. Now we're saying the school locally should

         10  handle it.

         11                 MR. ALONSO: Well, I'm not sure that

         12  you're hearing what we're communicating.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I'm

         14  hearing --

         15                 MR. ALONSO: You're using the words --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Hold on.

         17  Hold on one minute.

         18                 MR. ALONSO: Excuse me. Let me finish,

         19  sir.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I'm going

         21  to let you finish in a minute.

         22                 I'm hearing your response, but I'm

         23  also coupling it with your testimony in totality.

         24                 MR. ALONSO: No. Because you're (a)

         25  interrupting me, and (b) you're missing some of my
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          2  testimony which talks not only about a central unit,

          3  but about central and schools.

          4                 You also stopped Kleber before when

          5  he started telling you about what might take place

          6  at the school level in terms of using the resources

          7  of the community and said that you didn't want to

          8  hear about it, but in reality what takes place at

          9  the school level is that schools are not the

         10  bureaucracies that we're trying to make them out to

         11  be. Schools are communities, teachers pull down

         12  other teachers, pull down other parents, and that is

         13  how the system right now is addressing those needs.

         14                 Part of what we're trying to do is

         15  not to take away from a community-based approach,

         16  Mr. Gallagher, but to try to supplement that

         17  approach, Ms. Moskowitz, by providing a system that

         18  is rationale in nature, steps in when necessary,

         19  targets the need, builds on the resources of the

         20  community, and provides for the needs of parents.

         21                 You cannot take away the resources of

         22  the school when the task is to reach out to a

         23  parent.

         24                 That is the first line of action for

         25  principals and teachers.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I think what

          3  is frustrating to us is it just doesn't seem well

          4  thought out. It doesn't seem like you've really

          5  understood what needs to happen at the school level

          6  and how to apportion the resources appropriately.

          7                 I understand that some things may

          8  have to be done centrally, but I would urge you to

          9  keep them to a bear minimum and see what can

         10  actually happen at the school. Because the starting

         11  premise has to be what do parents want to access,

         12  not what you want them to access. What do they want

         13  to access? What kind of information are they trying

         14  to obtain? What kinds of questions do they have? And

         15  I just think it's sort of your mentality is very top

         16  down. You don't really have a handle on what it's

         17  like to be a parent in the New York City school

         18  system, and what kinds of problems the parents are

         19  trying to solve.

         20                 As I mentioned, I was at a school in

         21  Chinatown last week, and it was Mandarin and

         22  Cantonese, and the central question on their mind

         23  was when are their bathrooms going to be fixed?

         24                 They didn't care about the school

         25  capital budget as a document to get translated, what
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          2  they cared about is working bathrooms for their

          3  kids.

          4                 And, you know, they can't call 3-1-1

          5  and get the information. They've tried Central, that

          6  hasn't worked. They tried the region, that didn't

          7  work. And I think until we have a handle on these

          8  very, perhaps seemingly mundane, but it's very

          9  important, I can assure you, as a parent of the New

         10  York City public school student, when your kid comes

         11  home and says they're not using the bathroom all day

         12  because the bathrooms don't work, that seems like a

         13  pretty urgent problem.

         14                 School safety is a very urgent

         15  problem. Just think, you're working backwards from

         16  this regulatory framework.

         17                 Let me just ask you this, so I

         18  understand the money, and I want to, of course, get

         19  to parents who are going to come and talk to us

         20  about what it is they want translated, when they

         21  want it, how they want it, because I think that's

         22  where we need to start with the customer of the

         23  school system as it were.

         24                 When Chancellor Klein came to testify

         25  before this Committee on March 15th, I understood
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          2  that there was $4 million, 4.5, to be exact, for

          3  translation services for next year. Then on 5/13,

          4  right, in the answers to the info request, you put

          5  in a figure, it was your answers, of 5.6 million for

          6  next year. And then in the press release, that I

          7  guess I saw yesterday afternoon, thank you for

          8  sending that to me, it was $10 million.

          9                 So, in between March, approximately

         10  two months, you decided that the need was much

         11  greater than you had realized. Explain that jump to

         12  me.

         13                 MR. ALONSO: The original budget for

         14  the Translation and Interpretation Unit is $2.5

         15  million.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: When it was

         17  conceptualized?

         18                 MR. ALONSO: When it was

         19  conceptualized.

         20                 Some time during the year, because

         21  the unit started so late in terms of staff that were

         22  accruals because of staffing up, that budget was

         23  reduced for this year because there were pieces that

         24  were missing.

         25                 In the Mayor's Executive Budget,
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          2  there was an additional $2.8 million for expansion

          3  of the Translation and Interpretation Unit. We

          4  baselined the original $2.5 million and added $2.8

          5  million, and that budget of $5.3 million was what we

          6  provided to you in our response. And even though

          7  that budget is concentrated centrally, many of those

          8  resources are going to be in the field in terms of

          9  interpretation help for schools.

         10                 The additional money that was

         11  identified, and this is something that we started

         12  working on immediately after the unit "migrated" to

         13  teaching and learning, was something that we

         14  understood needed to happen precisely because of

         15  some of the statements that you just made as a

         16  preamble to the question, in terms of we understood

         17  issues as not being just central and I admit being a

         18  little frustrated by continually repeating that and

         19  what comes back is you centralized.

         20                 We understood that no matter what's

         21  happening at the school level, there are needs that

         22  are school based and we wanted to provide something

         23  for the school, so we identified funds that we are

         24  reallocating.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay. So, let
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          2  me just understand, we identified between May 13th

          3  and May 16th an additional $4 million?

          4                 MR. ALONSO: No. We have been looking

          5  at the budget, thinking through, and as you know,

          6  over the past few weeks there have been school

          7  budgets going on, trying to identify pieces within

          8  the Department in order to identify sources for the

          9  schools.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay, Mr.

         11  Alonso, if I am incorrect in my understanding, then

         12  correct me.

         13                 But on 5/13, in answers to our info

         14  request, you put in, I didn't come up with this

         15  figure, you guys did, you sent it to us and you said

         16  there's $5.6 million for next year.

         17                 On 5/16, which was yesterday, in your

         18  press release, not documents I'm producing,

         19  documents you are producing, you had a $10 million

         20  figure; how did it jump in three days, or why did it

         21  jump? Let me first ask you, did it jump?

         22                 Are you disputing that you first said

         23  on 5/13 5.6 million and then on 5/16 you said ten?

         24                 MR. ALONSO: We said 5.3, first of

         25  all. And secondly, we also said that we are in the
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          2  process of identifying funds, that is also in the

          3  responses to the Q and A. The reluctance to

          4  acknowledge the exact amount of the funds is because

          5  the funds are -- we wanted to make sure that we had

          6  the correct amount, and given the fact that these

          7  funds are coming from different parts of the

          8  Department and have different technical limitations

          9  in terms of their use, we wanted to make sure they

         10  were going to the right units.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: The right

         12  units where they're going has nothing to do with how

         13  much monies you're allocating.

         14                 Some time in between 5/13, when you

         15  say it was 5.3 million -- okay, please break down

         16  the unit's current annual cost and estimate the

         17  annual cost when the unit is fully implemented. You

         18  say that FY '06 total budget for the unit will be

         19  $5.3 million. You don't say that you're planning on

         20  plopping down some unspecified additional amount of

         21  money. But you did just say that.

         22                 You just said that in your answers.

         23  Am I not finding it?

         24                 MR. ALONSO: No. Because earlier in

         25  this document -- the extra money is not going to the
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          2  unit. Maybe that is what is not being communicated

          3  accurately on my part.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

          5                 MR. ALONSO: Or maybe that is what is

          6  not being understood.

          7                 When I keep going back to the idea

          8  that the schools are going to receive funding and

          9  the regions are going to receive funding that is

         10  going to help with this effort, that is not the

         11  unit's budget. That is the budget that is going to

         12  help with the issue of translation.

         13                 So, if the unit is not going to have

         14  a $10 million budget, I'm not going to tell you that

         15  the unit has a $10 million budget.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: You know, just

         17  answer the question.

         18                 MR. ALONSO: I am answering the

         19  questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay, the

         21  reason there is a difference, this would be a

         22  straightforward answer, let me be a little didactic.

         23                 The reason there is a discrepancy

         24  between the 5.3 and the 10 million is because the

         25  5.3 only represents the unit and the rest of the
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          2  monies represents what is going to go to the region

          3  and the school. That's all it takes.

          4                 MR. ALONSO: Thank you, Councilwoman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: That's what

          6  makes me very worried, that you guys are doing the

          7  translation, because you're not very clear in

          8  English.

          9                 So, I'm just worried how you're going

         10  to accomplish this in other languages.

         11                 MR. ALONSO: At least we're doing

         12  translations. Let me make that point, which is that

         13  I don't see translations in eight languages in the

         14  City Council website or in the Education Committee

         15  website. I mean, let me put that on the table.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: That's a fair

         17  point.

         18                 MR. ALONSO: That's not a fair point.

         19  It is extraordinarily hypocritical for, I believe,

         20  as a person who came to this country at the age of

         21  12, as a person who still needs to translate for his

         22  mother who never learned the language, as a person

         23  who went through schooling in this country, junior

         24  high and high school, with help, to go through a

         25  translation hearing where we are being asking to
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          2  justify, rightfully, I might say, what we're doing

          3  for translation, and yet, your office, which

          4  represents the representative government in this

          5  City, doesn't translate for these parents.

          6                 This is a --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Wait a second.

          8                 MR. ALONSO: Hold on. Don't interrupt

          9  me.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: No. No. I am

         11  the Chair --

         12                 MR. ALONSO: Wait for me to finish.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: No.

         14                 MR. ALONSO: I can walk out, but you

         15  need to wait for me to finish, because this hall is

         16  full of parents who don't speak the language, and

         17  this is the first time in 20 hearings I've been in

         18  this system, where there is translation for parents.

         19  The hypocrisy is flabberghasting.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Mr. Alonso,

         21  you have made several inaccurate statements.

         22                 MR. ALONSO: Well, justify them.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And I would

         24  ask you -- excuse me, Mr. Alonso, you are testifying

         25  before the duly elected legislative body and you
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          2  cannot just speak off the cuff, and I would expect a

          3  measure of respect. You need to think of yourself as

          4  testifying, we don't ask you to testify under oath,

          5  but you cannot just make false accusations, and you

          6  have made some so let me point them out.

          7                 This Committee does translate

          8  documents. We do it all the time.

          9                 MR. ALONSO: In eight languages?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Excuse me?

         11                 MR. ALONSO: Into eight languages?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: We don't

         13  always do it in eight languages, but you made --

         14  excuse me, Mr. Alonso, you made a number of

         15  accusations which are inaccurate. We are here, and

         16  at another point if you want to testify at another

         17  Committee, the appropriate committee would be

         18  Government Operations which looks at what government

         19  documents are translated in other languages. If you

         20  want to, as a private citizen come and testify at

         21  that hearing about what the City of New York does or

         22  what the New York City Council does, you are free to

         23  do that. But you are here to tell us what the

         24  Department of Education is doing vis-a-vis this

         25  service, and simply turning the table is not going
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          2  to work.

          3                 I can see that we all as a City have

          4  a lot to do to further accessing government

          5  services.

          6                 MR. ALONSO: We agree.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Excuse me.

          8  Excuse me.

          9                 It is incredibly rude the way you are

         10  behaving.

         11                 MR. ALONSO: I'm behaving the way you

         12  behave all the time. Cutting people in

         13  mid-sentences, putting words in their mouths.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Excuse me,

         15  sir. Maybe you want to take a five-minute break?

         16                 MR. ALONSO: No, I do not need a

         17  five-minute break. I need to talk about translation.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Then I would

         19  ask you to conduct yourself in a respectful manner.

         20  We do interrupt because we're trying to get concise

         21  answers to very particular questions.

         22                 Now, let me just go back to this $10

         23  million. My question is as follows: Where did you

         24  come up with the $10 million? Where was it before?

         25  How did you pull it out of a hat, and if you pulled
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          2  it out of a hat, can you pull $20 million out of a

          3  hat? Is there possibly $30 million either for more

          4  translation services, or for toilet paper or for

          5  copy paper, or for textbooks, or for any number of

          6  other things, could you please, as concisely as

          7  possible, explain where the additional monies came

          8  from?

          9                 Because when Chancellor Klein

         10  testified, there was only going to be $4.5 million

         11  for translation. Now as I understand it, it's going

         12  to be ten, which means you came up with about $5.5

         13  million, where did it come from?

         14                 MR. ALONSO: I'm not the Chief

         15  Financial Officer, therefore I cannot tell you where

         16  the rest of the money is or is not or whether it's

         17  available or not.

         18                 B) Schools and programs have funding.

         19  Some of that funding is spent, some of that funding

         20  is not spent. To the extent that there is funding

         21  that is not spent, then some of our funding carries

         22  over. We identify funding that is carrying over in

         23  baseline what some of those programs are, in order

         24  to make sure that they're not harmed and the money

         25  would be identified for these purposes.
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          2                 There are different funding streams

          3  throughout the system, and please stop me if I'm

          4  being too wordy, that can be used for these

          5  purposes. Title 1 can be used for these purposes,

          6  Title 3 can be used for these purposes. The budget

          7  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Were you

          9  switching monies? Were you using them -- I'm just

         10  talking about the 5.5. The 4.5 was already in the

         11  Mayor's Executive Budget.

         12                 MR. ALONSO: If you're talking about

         13  the additional money that was identified, those

         14  monies are reallocation of existing resources.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay, and what

         16  were they doing before? What were we spending it on

         17  before, what are we spending it on now?

         18                 MR. ALONSO: I cannot answer that

         19  question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Is there more

         21  that can be reallocated?

         22                 MR. ALONSO: I've already answered

         23  that question.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I didn't

         25  understand -- Sir, you know, we have kids who are
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          2  coming at these hearings -- I didn't understand your

          3  answer. What was your answer?

          4                 MR. ALONSO: My answer was that since

          5  I'm not the Chief Financial Officer, I do not have

          6  that information.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So you don't

          8  know whether there is more money that can be

          9  reallocated, other than the 5.5?

         10                 MR. ALONSO: My assumption is that we

         11  have used all of the resources at our disposal.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Let me ask

         13  you, when you got those additional 5.5, presumably

         14  someone had a conversation with Bruce Fyfe or

         15  Kathleen Grimm, who said to do this right we need X

         16  amount of dollars, can we have it?

         17                 MR. ALONSO: My conversation is, to

         18  give the schools resources that they need in order

         19  to do this we need more money, can you identify it

         20  for me.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And how much

         22  did you ask for?

         23                 MR. ALONSO: I asked for what I got.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So you asked

         25  for 10 million, in sum a total of ten?
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          2                 MR. ALONSO: We said that in order to

          3  make this work at this stage of the process, and

          4  part of our commitment is to continually reassess,

          5  is we needed at least $10 million that could be

          6  distributed throughout the system in order to begin

          7  to do this work right --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, asked for

          9  ten and you got ten?

         10                 MR. ALONSO: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Does the 10

         12  million include outsourcing for translation

         13  services?

         14                 MR. ALONSO: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay. And how

         16  much of the ten would you say is outsourced for

         17  translation services?

         18                 MR. PALMA: The translation services,

         19  $700,000 is allocated for translation services.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Is that this

         21  year or last year? Is this what you're proposing?

         22                 MR. PALMA: This upcoming, yes, this

         23  upcoming fiscal year.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And so you

         25  spent approximately the same amount last year?
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          2                 MR. PALMA: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Seven-hundred

          4  thousand?

          5                 MR. PALMA: Approximately.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: On

          7  outsourcing?

          8                 MR. PALMA: Yes.

          9                 I want to point out, though, that

         10  this upcoming year we're having an in-house staff of

         11  translators. We do plan to do more in the eight

         12  languages with our in-house staff, and farm out the

         13  languages with the low-incident languages, so that

         14  we can cover more parents.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So is that

         16  less outsourcing? Or, no, that's just a different --

         17                 MR. PALMA: It's a more efficient use

         18  of outsourcing.

         19                 We do plan to do more documentation.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

         21                 Okay, brief. Council Member Gallagher

         22  and then Council Member Monserrate.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you.

         24                 First of all, Mr. Alonso, I just

         25  would say I was a little disappointed in part of
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          2  your testimony. I wish that you would show a little

          3  bit more respect and courtesy to the Chairperson of

          4  this Committee, who is truly concerned about the

          5  kids of the City of New York, who does an

          6  outstanding job as the Education Chair.

          7                 On the second thought, though, I want

          8  to thank you because you're little dialogue back and

          9  forth with Chair proves one of the points that I was

         10  bringing up earlier when I spoke, when you asked

         11  whether or not the City Council makes everything

         12  available in different languages, and I have a

         13  question: After this bill, if it does go through, do

         14  we do more bills for the Department of Health to

         15  make things go through, brochures, you know,

         16  different languages? Do we go to the Sanitation

         17  Department? Do we go to the Police Department? Do we

         18  go to the Transportation Department? Do we go here

         19  to the City Council, the Fire Department, the

         20  Department for the Aging? Do we have eight different

         21  translators at every senior center to make sure that

         22  everything is handled there? What about the Division

         23  of Youth Services, the Law Department, or any City

         24  agency anywhere in the City of New York?

         25                 You said before in your testimony
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          2  that this legislation is prohibitive in cost. We had

          3  heard previously estimates that lingered around near

          4  $20 million. I believe it probably will be in excess

          5  of $20 million. I am not a professional, I look

          6  forward to getting your notice in two weeks.

          7                 But I want to say that the problem

          8  with this legislation is that once it starts here it

          9  has to go to every agency. And if it's prohibitive

         10  in the Department of Education, it's going to be

         11  prohibitive in cost in every single other agency,

         12  and the cost is going to be the new burden of the

         13  taxpaying citizens.

         14                 Remember, folks, there was difficulty

         15  financially. We closed six firehouses in the City of

         16  New York, about $6 million, I mentioned before about

         17  how paraprofessionals were let go in the classroom,

         18  and other cuts were never full restored. This

         19  legislation sends the wrong signal. It's at the

         20  wrong time.

         21                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Council Member

         23  Monserrate.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair.
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          2                 Let me say that when I look at this

          3  room, I look at a room full of taxpayers, also who

          4  deserve services. Taxpayers who come here to realize

          5  the American dream like generations before, they say

          6  that the one thing that I find interesting, again,

          7  to Mr. Alonso, is respect to the $10 million request

          8  that you have made. I would imagine that if you made

          9  a $10 million request, there's a plan or at least a

         10  draft of the plan as how that will be used and

         11  implemented. I believe that even a rough draft from

         12  your agency to this Committee will be helpful for us

         13  to have somewhat of a meeting of the minds and see

         14  how we can come together collectively in providing

         15  these services for those who need it in our City.

         16                 Thank you, Madam Chair, again.

         17                 MR. ALONSO: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you very

         19  much for your testimony. We are now going to hear

         20  from parents and advocates. We appreciate you coming

         21  forward. We would request the additional documents

         22  that were promised to this Committee.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 We're now going to hear from Isabel

         25  Torres, Irania Sanchez, Sara Ahmed and Chris Huang.
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          2                 Good afternoon. Thank you for your

          3  patience. We very much look forward to your

          4  testimony.

          5                 I would ask that if you have written

          6  testimony, you don't need to read the testimony.

          7  What we're really interested in is very basic. Two

          8  things: One, if you can comment on anything you

          9  heard in the testimony that seemed to you right,

         10  wrong or not relevant; but what we're most

         11  interested in is where do you find the challenges to

         12  obtaining good education for your kids? Where are

         13  the points? What are the barriers? What difficulties

         14  are you facing so that we can kind of evaluate

         15  whether the Department's plan is going to help,

         16  whether the bill is going to assist you in your

         17  needs. So, when you are navigating the system, what

         18  kinds of challenges do you face? That would be the

         19  most useful thing I think for the Committee to

         20  understand.

         21                 The light has to be off.

         22                 MS. SANCHEZ: (Through an

         23  interpreter.) My name is Irania Sanchez. I'm a

         24  member of Make the Road By Walking. I'm not going to

         25  read my testimony but I'm going to tell you about
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          2  some of the challenges that I've had at the school,

          3  my daughter's school.

          4                 I've tried to be aware about my child

          5  learning in school. One of the problems I had was my

          6  child, my daughter had an accident at the school.

          7  She came back with a swollen eye and I got really

          8  scared. I received a letter in English from the

          9  school. I was at work. I got very scared, so what I

         10  did was I went to Make The Road By Walking, which is

         11  an organization that helps the Latino community.

         12                 They told me that my daughter had had

         13  an accident at the school, but it was an accident

         14  but if she felt bad, that I should bring her to the

         15  emergency room. And I worry very much because my

         16  daughter suffers from asthma.

         17                 So, the second problem I had was my

         18  daughter suffers from asthma and several problems.

         19  The doctor gave me a letter in English to bring to

         20  the school. I gave it to the school nurse who only

         21  speaks English and then I found out they had lost

         22  the letter, and I was suffering very much because I

         23  had put the machine for asthma twice in the evening

         24  because the school wasn't giving her the machine

         25  treatment because they had lost the letter that I
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          2  had brought.

          3                 So, I spoke with someone at the

          4  school and asked them why don't you make an effort

          5  to send me something in Spanish that I can read? And

          6  the person from the school said we don't have the

          7  obligation to give you anything in translated. Tell

          8  the City. The City is the one that has to send you

          9  the document and translate it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 MS. MARTINEZ: (Through the

         13  interpreter.) My name is Catalina Martinez, and I am

         14  a member of Make The Road By Walking. My testimony

         15  is about my 12-year-old child. I have had problems

         16  in the school with the education of my child, which

         17  is the thing that interests me the most. But also

         18  with health problems, the school always contacts me

         19  about health problems with my child, but they

         20  always, from the school, but they always contact me

         21  in English.

         22                 It causes me a lot of anguish because

         23  I feel very confused. Sometimes I've even lost my

         24  keys or put one shoe different from the other

         25  because of the anguish and the confusion because of

                                                            113

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  my child.

          3                 So, finally, when I get to the

          4  offices of the school, I ask about the problem that

          5  they have called me about, they tell me I'm sorry,

          6  we don't speak Spanish.

          7                 You need to bring someone that speaks

          8  English and Spanish or we're going to see if maybe

          9  we can find someone that can do the translation.

         10                 That's what happened from first grade

         11  to fifth grade. And now my child is in sixth grade.

         12  And I went very happy to the first meeting, thinking

         13  that there would be one person who would conduct the

         14  meeting in two languages or more. But,

         15  unfortunately, the two meetings that I've had have

         16  only been meetings in English.

         17                 I'm worried tremendously about not

         18  being able to participate in the education of my

         19  child, because that's the motive, the reason, why

         20  our children cannot continue with more strength as

         21  we would want them to. So that they can be good

         22  citizens in the future like yourselves.

         23                 I would like you to support us to

         24  pass Intro. 464, for the parents like myself do not

         25  have the luxury of taking English classes because we
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          2  have to work very hard so that our children what we

          3  didn't have, which is an education. And thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

          6                 We're a little pressed for time and

          7  we've got a number of other witnesses, and we have

          8  to, unfortunately, be out of this room. So, if you

          9  can just as briefly as possible, just describe the

         10  particular challenge and example, I'm sure there are

         11  many, an example of a challenge that you face, that

         12  would be helpful.

         13                 MS. TORRES: (Through the

         14  interpreter.) My name is Isabel Torres. I want to

         15  share with you my experience with the lack of

         16  translation. Since my daughter started school, she

         17  has had many problems with comprehension.

         18                 She has needed many extra services

         19  which have allowed her to move to the next level.

         20                 At the beginning of the school year

         21  my daughter had attended school for one week and was

         22  absent for an entire month because of an illness.

         23                 During that month I brought several

         24  papers to the school to explain her absence.

         25                 I brought all the papers to explain
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          2  why she couldn't attend school. And when I brought

          3  her again to school, they told me that they have

          4  removed her from the school rolls.

          5                 All the times that I went to the

          6  school, I always had conversations in English and

          7  was never able to communicate in Spanish.

          8                 A few months ago I received a letter

          9  in English, like the majority of the letters that I

         10  receive from the school, where they told me that my

         11  child wouldn't be able to pass to the next grade

         12  because of all the absences that she had.

         13                 I didn't understand very well what

         14  the letter said, so I brought the letter to the

         15  Integration Center for Translation. There they

         16  helped me to translate the letter, and I brought the

         17  letter to correct the situation so that the school

         18  would accept her again.

         19                 A few days later I received another

         20  letter also in English about supplementary education

         21  services. I again brought the letter to the center

         22  so they could translate it and explain what the

         23  letter was saying.

         24                 When I went to the school to find out

         25  more information, I found out that in fact my
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          2  daughter had not received any of the special

          3  education services since October, which she was

          4  supposed to receive.

          5                 The school never informed me about

          6  the situation, at least not in a language that I

          7  could understand.

          8                 So then again I had to ask for help

          9  to correct the situation. And someone from the

         10  center also came with me to serve as an interpreter

         11  at a meeting that I had with the counselor.

         12                 As you can see, the lack of

         13  translation was a very important problem for parents

         14  like us who don't speak English.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         17                 Sara Ahmed and Chris Huang.

         18                 And, again, if I can just ask you to

         19  speak to the issues, that would be great.

         20                 MR. HUANG: Okay. My name is Chris

         21  Huang. There is one thing that was said that I agree

         22  with, is that parents should volunteer in the school

         23  community to help out translating. Does it matter

         24  how it gets translated, or it should be provided by

         25  parents, whether through volunteers or laws enforced
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          2  in schools?

          3                 A child's education is very

          4  important. If an immigrant child does not have an

          5  equal opportunity as an American born, that is very

          6  wrong. Many parents here in this room is facing the

          7  same problem. America is a place where people come

          8  to live.  In America, that is the American dream.

          9  This dream cannot be achieved if others have an

         10  advantage. The Board of Education should make it as

         11  fair as possible for everyone to achieve the same

         12  dream.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And where are

         14  you a student?

         15                 MR. HUANG: Russell Sage.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         17                 MS. AHMED: Hello. My name is Sara

         18  Ahmed, and I am a ninth grader at Russell Sage and a

         19  YCCP member. YCCP is the Youth Community

         20  Collaborative Planning at Forest Hills Community

         21  House.

         22                 I get scared when it comes to having

         23  parent conferences in my school. It's not because of

         24  bad grades or bad behavior. In these past three

         25  years my parents have not only been absent from
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          2  every parent/teacher conference, but they also

          3  haven't attended any parent activities held in my

          4  school.

          5                 I don't expect my father to take time

          6  off work because he's very busy working to

          7  financially support the family. My mother, being a

          8  housewife, takes a lot of interest in my education

          9  but cannot help, because she does not speak or

         10  understand English.

         11                 Often she asks me the question about

         12  how my studies are and what's going on in school.

         13  Most of the time I give up on answering because I

         14  don't always know the answer. This is why my school

         15  should be able to provide translation, for a mother

         16  to know about her daughter's education.

         17                 All of the school notices that are

         18  for my parents go in the garbage, because my mother,

         19  who actually has the time to read, can't even read

         20  them.

         21                 When it comes to parents being

         22  involved in their child's education, I feel inferior

         23  and isolated, compared to my friends.

         24                 There are thousands of students who

         25  feel like this, and this could be the reasons behind
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          2  their poor grades.

          3                 Students and parents rely on the City

          4  government and the Board of Education to improve

          5  education and communication. Parents are indeed an

          6  essential part of their child's successful

          7  education.

          8                 I'd like to conclude by thanking you

          9  all for listening and understanding the situation of

         10  children's parents who know little or no English

         11  like me.

         12                 This is not only discouragement, but

         13  discrimination, as well. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         15                 Very briefly, because we have one

         16  more panel and we have to be out of this room. So,

         17  if you have a very brief statement, please go ahead.

         18                 PARTICIPANT: (Not identified for the

         19  record.) Okay. Well, I attend Manhattan

         20  Comprehensive Night and Day High School, which is a

         21  specialized school for mostly ESL students. These

         22  are first generation immigrants that come to the

         23  school that are usually older than most high school

         24  students.

         25                 The problem with the school is they
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          2  can't provide services. They can't provide any

          3  translation services in any language except the

          4  major ones to the parents, and we have a majority of

          5  students, at least 90 percent of the students are

          6  from different countries, like China, Korea, Haiti,

          7  these students, they have difficulty in English.

          8                 So, you can imagine how much

          9  difficult their parents would have. And the problem

         10  is there are different parent/teacher letters that

         11  are sent out in only maybe two or three languages.

         12  Report cards, they're not even translated, it's just

         13  standard English, they sent it out to the parents.

         14                 The problem is the parents need to be

         15  involved in their child's education. You have to

         16  have them evolve. They are the main teachers in the

         17  child's early formative years. So, if you can't have

         18  the parents involved, you cannot expect that child

         19  to be a contributing member of society when they are

         20  older, to encourage them to pursue higher education

         21  and then contribute to society as taxpayers which

         22  would then in turn help the City.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

         25  very, very much.
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          2                 We are now going to hear from Amina

          3  Rachman, Margie McHugh, Sonal Patel, Wayne Ho, and

          4  Catalina Martinez, as well as Vladimir Epshteyn.

          5                 I just want to point out to Mr.

          6  Palma, who I think is still here, that one of the

          7  parents who testified about the SES letter, which is

          8  translated, correct? So, this is what I'm worried

          9  about. You can translate the documents and they can

         10  collect dust and there's a real quality control

         11  problem because those letters are not making it to

         12  the parents.

         13                 And I would be very hesitant to have

         14  all this translating going on when you don't really

         15  have a method of checking whether they're being

         16  distributed. And the method that apparently exists

         17  at the Department of Education is a signature by the

         18  principal. And for whatever reason, that has been

         19  shown to be an inadequate method. Unless you do spot

         20  checking, and I think if you did you would find out

         21  many of these documents that you do already

         22  translate are not getting into the hands of the

         23  people you're trying to serve.

         24                 Thank you for your patience, and I'm

         25  sorry we've gotten behind schedule. I would ask what
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          2  I often ask you to do, just speak to the issues that

          3  you've heard today. Tell us what you've heard, what

          4  makes sense to you, tell us what problems you have

          5  encountered in your work with parents, and help us

          6  in a very brief time focus the committee on what we

          7  should be focused on to improve the level of

          8  translation and the service that parents are

          9  receiving.

         10                 Please begin, Amina Rachman. Thank

         11  you for being here.

         12                 MS. RACHMAN: Thank you.

         13                 I'm Amina Rachman, Special Assistant

         14  to the President of the United Federation of

         15  Teachers. My particular area of work and

         16  concentration for the UFT is our outreach to and

         17  work with parents and community organizations.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: If I could ask

         19  everyone, if you have conversations, if you could

         20  take them outside, please? Thank you.

         21                 I'm sorry. Go right ahead.

         22                 MS. RACHMAN: One of my main programs

         23  is the Dial A Teacher Program, a program that the

         24  Council helped to fund, gave us the original funding

         25  for it nearly 25 years ago. Dial A Teacher is a
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          2  homework help line that regularly receives, last

          3  year we handled 88,000 telephone calls, between

          4  September and May. Most of those calls are from

          5  students looking for assistance with their homework,

          6  but 15 percent on average here, and that number has

          7  been going up recently, at 15 percent of our calls

          8  are from parents. And anywhere from 25 to 40 percent

          9  of those parent calls are from parents who do not

         10  speak English.

         11                 Dial A Teacher provides services in

         12  ten languages other than English, and all of our

         13  teachers who speak those other languages are never

         14  sitting idle. They are always at work.

         15                 Whether parents are calling and need

         16  help in Chinese, Korean, Russian, we could fit in a

         17  few more languages and have them and have them fully

         18  used. We do lots of workshops with parents, and we

         19  also provide translators.

         20                 Sometimes if you come to Dial A

         21  Teacher, we can have, we bring busloads of parents

         22  up to Dial A Teacher to get workshops. We'll have a

         23  Chinese session going in one room, Haitian, Creole

         24  in another, Spanish in another, and everybody is

         25  actively involved.
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          2                 So, I'm saying this to point out that

          3  the need for translation is not only on things like

          4  health issues, or an SES letter, you know, or

          5  discipline problem, but parents also need

          6  information about the academic program and what they

          7  can be doing at home to help their children achieve

          8  academically, particularly because of the parents'

          9  role, particularly in the early grades, we want

         10  parents to work with their children on reading, on

         11  math, and all of the material that is sent home

         12  about that is in English.

         13                 We are not at all encouraging or

         14  welcoming the kind of parent involvement that's

         15  necessary for schools to succeed, and we know what

         16  the research says about parent involvement. Test

         17  scores go up, graduation scores go up, children

         18  succeed, and schools work better.

         19                 I want to end by just saying that

         20  we've got standards now in all the academic areas. A

         21  lot of people are not aware that there are standards

         22  developed by the national PTA, standards for parent

         23  involvement that have been adopted by many states

         24  around the country, not by New York, I don't think.

         25  But there are six standards of parent involvement

                                                            125

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  and the first one is communication between home and

          3  school that is regular, two-way, and meaningful.

          4  That's the standard for parent involvement. The

          5  first one. Regular communication. Regular, two-way

          6  and meaningful. And that's essential. And that's

          7  what translation would help to facilitate among

          8  those families where English is not the first or

          9  primary language.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         11                 Sonia Patel.

         12                 MS. PATEL: Thank you. I'm here on

         13  behalf of Advocates For Children. I'm going to first

         14  start off and apologize to the Committee, the

         15  Executive Director could not be here today.

         16                 I think we need to seriously consider

         17  how we're framing this issue. The issue of language,

         18  translation, interpretation services is not a sort

         19  of secondary supplementary, if you have the money

         20  and the time you'll do it type of service. We're

         21  talking about the clear civil rights of New York

         22  City's LLE parents. The laws and support that

         23  provide for these services are based in civil rights

         24  law, and in federal, state, and also local

         25  regulations that are meant to protect these parents.
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          2                 As an attorney and advocate in our

          3  office on behalf of these parents. We see on a daily

          4  basis parents whose children are languishing in the

          5  special education system. Parents whose children are

          6  being illegally pushed out of schools because

          7  parents can't read the documents and the notices

          8  that school officials are presenting to them.

          9                 Parents who simply do not know that

         10  their child has been left back two years in a row

         11  and is wondering why everyone else in their child's

         12  class is celebrating their seventh birthday, when

         13  their child is celebrating their tenth. These are

         14  real life stories and real life experiences of

         15  parents in the system, and I think it's crucial that

         16  we don't get wrapped up in a lot of the sort of

         17  non-productive ways of talking about this issue and

         18  really do, I think, challenge the City Council and

         19  the Department of Education both to frame the issue

         20  in a way I think that we talked about before, how is

         21  this affecting the parents on a daily basis?

         22                 And there are a series of rights

         23  associated with this particular service that have

         24  been overlooked for years in this school system.

         25                 The immigrant communities really do
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          2  run this city and we do a very, very poor job of

          3  educating the children, and I think the translation

          4  interpretation services that we're calling for will

          5  go a long way in actually ensuring that parents and

          6  students succeed in this system.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

          8                 Mr. Wayne Ho.

          9                 MR. HO: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: The light has

         11  to be off.

         12                 MR. HO: Hello. Thank you, Madam

         13  Chair, for inviting us today to speak regarding

         14  Intro. 464.

         15                 The Coalition for Asian-American

         16  Children and families strongly supports this intro.

         17  It is, as Sonal said, not a fiscal issue on

         18  promoting language access for parents in New York

         19  City, it's a civil rights issue. And I actually was

         20  astounded by what City Council Member Gallagher, how

         21  he framed the issue as making it a financial issue,

         22  and we don't disagree that there needs to be money

         23  put into the budget to ensure that there's

         24  translation services, but at the end of the day,

         25  it's a right for the parent to know how their child
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          2  is performing in school. It's a right for a parent

          3  to be involved in their child's education. It's a

          4  right for a parent to know the child can graduate on

          5  time, if a child is getting into a fight, if the

          6  child is not meeting certain health standards, or if

          7  a child is not making the grade. We don't want any

          8  more students in New York City to fall through the

          9  cracks, and Intro 464 is one step to ensure that no

         10  child falls through the crack.

         11                 We hear from many parents, Korean

         12  parents, Filipino parents, South Asian parents,

         13  Chinese parents, who tell us that they know their

         14  child is misinterpreting what's going on because

         15  they don't want to get into trouble and arguments

         16  with their parents.

         17                 And I think one thing that Intro. 464

         18  ensures is that no child will have to be the sole

         19  interpreter in their family. No child should be the

         20  one required to go up to their parent and tell them

         21  what's going on in their education. It's the

         22  responsibility of the school, it's the

         23  responsibility of the school system to communicate

         24  with parents effectively.

         25                 The Asian-Pacific-American population
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          2  is the fastest-growing group in New York City by

          3  percentage. Seventy-eight percent of

          4  Asian-Pacific-Americans are foreign born, 28 percent

          5  of -- excuse me, 20 percent of Asian-Americans do

          6  not speak English well or at all, according to the

          7  census, and one out of five English Language Learner

          8  students in New York City are

          9  Asian-Pacific-American. And we can surmise with

         10  these statistics that we know that the parents are

         11  not engaged, are not involved in their child's

         12  schools. So what we want to ensure is that, yes, the

         13  Department of Translation and Interpretation is a

         14  good start by the Department of Education to ensure

         15  that there's language access for parents throughout

         16  New York City. And we know that the money that they

         17  just allocated yesterday to help out translation

         18  interpretation services is a good start. But we

         19  don't want election year politics with no

         20  sustainability of funding to impact parent language

         21  access to schools. So, what we hope is that Intro.

         22  464 is passed to ensure all parents have access to

         23  the information that they have a right to, to ensure

         24  that their children can succeed successfully.

         25                 And in terms of implementation, we
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          2  need to make sure that all these documents that are

          3  translated do get out to the parents on time. It's

          4  not fair for parents to find out about events after

          5  they happened because it takes too long to

          6  translate.

          7                 We need to make sure that parent

          8  coordinators, that there's enough funding for parent

          9  coordinators so it's not up to one parent

         10  coordinator that has to translate into multiple

         11  languages, which we know that's not possible.

         12                 We need to make sure that there is

         13  collaboration between community organizations and

         14  schools so that they can help out with the

         15  translation services that are necessary.

         16                 New York City prides itself on being

         17  a City of diversity, and it's very diverse in terms

         18  of its languages. And we know that Intro. 464 is one

         19  step in the right direction to ensure that the

         20  Department of Education, that schools, that

         21  education is accessible for parents. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         23                 I think that Mr. Jose Deville is

         24  going to speak instead of Margie McHugh. Just we

         25  have very little time and it's unfortunate. You
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          2  know, I just want to say that what would be helpful,

          3  and you obviously can't do it here, is we're trying

          4  to get out, I appreciate, obviously, your civil

          5  rights perspective, but what we're trying to figure

          6  out is, how to deliver this service. And it's not so

          7  self evident how to do that. I don't know what your

          8  perspective is, I was somewhat under-whelmed by how

          9  well the Department had thought out the delivery of

         10  the service. What should be done centrally? What

         11  needs to be done locally?

         12                 We heard from parents who wanted the

         13  SES letter, well that is done centrally, but it

         14  didn't get into her hands so there's a distribution

         15  problem. You know, other problems that were

         16  mentioned, you know, is the school nurse

         17  interaction, what needs to happen there. So, this is

         18  a hearing where we're trying to accomplish two

         19  things; one, look at the bill. But it's broader than

         20  just this law, the question we're asking, the larger

         21  question, of we clearly have not done a very good

         22  job in the City of New York of empowering parents

         23  who are non-native speakers of English. And, so,

         24  we're trying to think through, well, how would you

         25  do that right? And we do have to ask the price tag

                                                            132

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  question, because if to do it right cost 20 million

          3  and not ten, then maybe that's what we should be

          4  doing, of course we're going to have to find that

          5  money from elsewhere as we eagerly anticipate the

          6  CFE fund, maybe some of those funds need to be used

          7  for this. There were a whole series of questions

          8  that go beyond simply the bill at work here, which

          9  I'm hoping, which I know is hard to weigh in in this

         10  brief period of time. But I'm hoping those are the

         11  types of questions we need you to weigh in on. And

         12  perhaps after the hearing when we have informal

         13  conversations we can do that as well.

         14                 Mr. Jose Deville. Thank you for being

         15  here.

         16                 MR. DeVILLE: Well, Madam Chairwoman,

         17  thank you very much for allowing us to testify

         18  today. My name is Jose DeVille, and I'm with the New

         19  York Immigration Coalition.

         20                 I will read a couple of sentences

         21  from my testimony which may address your concerns,

         22  and I can certainly answer questions on some of the

         23  specifics you raised.

         24                 Intro. 464 of the Educational Equity

         25  Act would make it possible for hundreds of thousands
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          2  of limited English-speaking parents to be involved

          3  in their children's education by requiring DOE to

          4  create a comprehensive translation and

          5  interpretation system serving all City public

          6  schools.

          7                 DOE has made strides. DOE has made

          8  strides in addressing language barriers by

          9  establishing a translation unit, and proposal to

         10  increase funds for the upcoming school year to

         11  translate more documents and to begin to support

         12  school-based capacity to provide interpretation

         13  assistance.

         14                 However, Intro. 464 required DOE to

         15  go beyond current plans by ensuring all key

         16  documents are translated into eight major languages,

         17  whether created centrally by regions or at the

         18  school level, and would establish clear monitoring

         19  and complaint procedures to ensure implementation at

         20  all points in the school system.

         21                 And I want to just step aside for a

         22  second and say that, while the Department has done

         23  some good stuff and the funding is definitely a

         24  major step forward, the law creates clear rules

         25  about how to implement the services. For example,
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          2  the Department has been able to provide

          3  interpretation at fairs say in Spanish, Chinese and

          4  Haitian/Creole, but this law require interpretation

          5  in all the languages. And so it goes beyond what the

          6  current efforts are, and presumably what the current

          7  plans are to beef up school-based capacity, and to

          8  require the Department to report about who they're

          9  serving, what they're doing to serve, the kind of

         10  staffing they have and so forth.

         11                 I want to make one more statement and

         12  then I'll end there. We urge the City Council and

         13  Mayor Bloomberg to immediately pass, fund and enact

         14  Council 464.

         15                 Furthermore, we call on the Mayor and

         16  the City Council to meet the needs of the

         17  translation unit, as well as schools, for allocating

         18  $15 million in the fiscal year 2006 budget to fully

         19  implement Intro. 464.

         20                 The Chancellor's recent announcement

         21  of 7.5 million in new funding is a major step

         22  forward in eliminating language barriers.

         23                 This promise of new funding and this

         24  new unit and hopefully this bill will provide us

         25  with new optimism that the Mayor and the Chancellor
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          2  will embrace the City Council initiative and live up

          3  to their commitment to fully implement a

          4  comprehensive translation interpretation system in

          5  all our schools.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

          7                 And I want to thank the New York

          8  Immigration Coalition for the wireless headsets that

          9  you provided. We very, very much appreciate that.

         10                 MR. DeVILLE: You're welcome.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I also want to

         12  thank Mr. Palma. This is the first time that I can

         13  recall that a high-level Department of Education --

         14  Erin always stays but Erin doesn't have the specific

         15  expertise -- has ever stayed to hear what parents

         16  have to say, and I want to make sure that I very

         17  publicly acknowledge that, because I'm hearing after

         18  hearing when parents are speaking and telling their

         19  stories, often there is no one here to listen to

         20  what their experience. So, we're very grateful for

         21  that and I'm most appreciative.

         22                 I also want to thank Laura Avilla,

         23  and Virginia Velencia for their interpretation,

         24  simultaneous interpretation. We're most

         25  appreciative.
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          2                 Thank you very much, and we're going

          3  to call this hearing to a conclusion. Thank you.

          4                 (The following written testimony was

          5  read into the record.)

          6

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Andrew Friedman

         10  Make the Road by Walking, Inc.

         11

         12                 On behalf of Make the Road by

         13  Walking, I testify to strongly encourage you to

         14  support Intro 464: The Education Equity Act. This

         15  legislation is an important civil rights initiative

         16  to promote real parent involvement and to ensure

         17  equity of opportunity for all New York students.

         18                 As you well know, parent involvement

         19  is key to student success. But hundreds of thousands

         20  of New York City parents cannot be involved in their

         21  children's education simply because they do not

         22  speak English. As a result, these children suffer,

         23  and teachers lose important allies in the

         24  educational process.

         25                 One in four New York City parents is
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          2  not an English speaker, according to the 2000

          3  Census. 50% of all New York City residents speak a

          4  language other than English in the home. If the

          5  Department of Education wants to foster real parent

          6  involvement, it simply must meet the needs of those

          7  parents who are limited in English proficiency.

          8                 A recent report published by Make the

          9  Road by Walking found that a mere 40% of limited

         10  English proficient parents receive the translation

         11  and interpretation services they need, and a

         12  remarkable 98% believe that their children's

         13  education would be enhanced if the DOE would provide

         14  these services.

         15                 Recent reports from the New York

         16  Immigration Coalition and Advocates for Children

         17  back these findings up, with almost half of the

         18  1,000 parents surveyed saying they "never" or

         19  "rarely" receive schools materials translated into

         20  their native language. Another study illustrated how

         21  school-based parent coordinators, charged with the

         22  important task of engaging parents, are ill-equipped

         23  to meet the language needs of parents who do not

         24  speak English.

         25                 The Bloomberg Administration has
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          2  acknowledged that the lack of translation and

          3  interpretation services is a problem. In a positive

          4  first step, the Department of Education recently

          5  announced the creation of a new Translation and

          6  Interpretation Services Unit. The new unit, though,

          7  is woefully under-staffed and under-funded. The DOE

          8  has not stated which documents will be translated

          9  and has not stated by when this translation will

         10  occur. The DOE has also failed to specify when and

         11  how interpretation services will be provided to

         12  limited English proficient parents.

         13                 Intro. 464: The Education Equity Act

         14  is a concrete plan to promote equity and inclusion.

         15  This legislation requires the Department of

         16  Education to translate documents for parents into

         17  eight languages and to provide on-site

         18  interpretation services for parents. The legislation

         19  promoted real parent involvement and has already

         20  garnered the support of over half of the City

         21  Council, the United Federation of Teachers, SEIU

         22  32BJ and a wide range of education, civil rights and

         23  immigrant advocates.

         24                 I testify to strongly support this

         25  legislation and to encourage you to work to ensure
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          2  that the City Council pass it as soon as possible.

          3  Teachers, students and parents are all looking to

          4  you for leadership in facilitating the involvement

          5  of non-English-speaking parents. The future of

          6  millions of New York City children depends on it.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 1:05 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the
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         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by
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         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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